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          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Good evening.  My

          3  name is Councilwoman Margarita Lopez.  I am the

          4  Chair of the Committee on Mental Health, Mental

          5  Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse and People with

          6  Disabilities.

          7                 Before we proceed with the business

          8  of this committee, I would like to introduce all of

          9  the players that you see over here 'cause I always

         10  feel that is very unpolite for you not to know who

         11  we are, and you have the right to know each and

         12  every one of us by name and what is what we do over

         13  here.

         14                 First, the other colleagues of mine

         15  are going to introduce themselves and they're going

         16  to let you know what district they represent in the

         17  parts of the city and any statement that they would

         18  like to make.

         19                 The subject of the hearing today is

         20  looking in the impact that will have the proposal of

         21  closing the psychiatric institutions that the

         22  Governor had proposed to close in different parts of

         23  the city.

         24                 We have for consideration in this

         25  hearing a resolution condemning that closing and
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          2  condemning that closing because the problem that the

          3  closing of those institutions are going to create,

          4  not only for the consumers, not only for the

          5  families that need those services, but also for the

          6  communities where those institutions are located,

          7  that are part of the economic development of those

          8  areas.

          9                 Without saying no more, from my left

         10  individuals who will introduce themselves and they

         11  will tell you who they are and from where they are.

         12                 Council member?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Good

         14  afternoon. Council Member Helen Foster.  I represent

         15  the 16th District in the Bronx.

         16                 I just want to applaud you,

         17  Chairperson Lopez, for having the courage and the

         18  insight to have this hearing and introduce this

         19  resolution.  I feel we treat people with mental

         20  health so poorly in this city and in this state.  As

         21  it is there are not enough facilities to service

         22  children.  We end up keeping them in emergency rooms

         23  for two and three days.  And to think that it's okay

         24  to close the psych center for children and/or adults

         25  is ridiculous and I applaud you for doing this.  I
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          2  look forward to voting on this resolution.  I think

          3  in some ways we're preaching to the choir.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Good

          5  afternoon.  My name is Council Member Robert

          6  Jackson, representing northern Manhattan.

          7                 This issue concerning the proposed

          8  closure not only affects the great people of the

          9  Bronx but it affects all people in New York City and

         10  around the state.  I think it's imperative that we

         11  have the facilities in order to deal with the mental

         12  illnesses of the people of this great state.  Know

         13  that for years the strategy of the Governor has been

         14  to downsize and close and basically dump individuals

         15  onto the streets of New York City and surrounding

         16  communities, is no longer tolerable and we will not

         17  stand for it.  That's why this resolution condemns

         18  the proposed closing of the Bronx Psych Children and

         19  the other adult psychiatric centers around the

         20  state.

         21                 We must have appropriate facilities

         22  in order to address the needs of the citizens of

         23  this great state. They must be provided with

         24  adequate care by professionals in order so that the

         25  rehabilitation process for our neighbors and our
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          2  friends and our relatives take place, so that they

          3  can come out and continue to be productive citizens

          4  of this great state.

          5                 I have a personal vested interest to

          6  ensure that the quality of care for the mentally ill

          7  takes place. My sister- in- law is a patient at

          8  Bronx Psychiatric Center and I know that she's been

          9  there for a while and she's receiving the

         10  appropriate care.  Where would she go if, in fact,

         11  they closed the facility?  Where would her relatives

         12  go to visit her?  Would it be upstate New York?

         13  Psychiatric facilities are supposed to be local in

         14  nature and it is imperative that the Bronx have a

         15  psychiatric center that services the people of the

         16  Bronx.

         17                 I would share what Margarita Lopez

         18  has stated before, the Bronx Psychiatric Center has

         19  the only Hispanic units in the State of New York.

         20  Knowing that a large population of the Bronx is

         21  Hispanic, it is imperative that we have these

         22  services to serve the primary language of the people

         23  that speak Spanish.  So, Chair Margarita Lopez, I'm

         24  in strong favor as a primary sponsor of this

         25  Resolution 771 and I support you wholeheartedly in
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          2  your quest to have this voted out today.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Now, the members

          4  of the staff of the Council who serve in this

          5  committee, who really do their job, contrary to what

          6  people believe, are going to introduce themselves.

          7                 Michael?

          8                 MR. POLENBERG:  Michael Polenberg,

          9  Counsel, Finance Division.

         10                 MS. EMERMAN:  Anne Emerman, Senior

         11  Staff Advisor to the Committee.

         12                 MS. BOLANOS:  I'm Maritza Bolanos and

         13  I'm the Counsel to the Committee.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  We would have two

         15  Sergeants- of- Arms in the Council.  Gina and Josh,

         16  can you stand up?  They will be involved in

         17  proceedings in here.

         18  Okay.

         19                 Thank you very much for your patience

         20  on this.  We will begin the meeting.

         21                 Before anything I want to apologize

         22  for not being able to be in the press conference

         23  that took place before, but I learn about that press

         24  conference very late and I have a meeting at the

         25  moment that that press conference was happen.
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          2                 Therefore, it was impossible for me

          3  to be there.  It was not that I wanted to disrespect

          4  any one of you, but it was literally impossible for

          5  me to cancel the meeting that I have at the moment

          6  that I was having it.  I'm glad that you had the

          7  press conference on the issue and we need to begin

          8  making a lot of noise about this.

          9                 Saying that, good afternoon, I would

         10  like to welcome everyone here to this hearing of the

         11  Committee on Mental Health, Mental Retardation,

         12  Alcoholism, Drug Abuse and Disability Services.

         13                 My name is Margarita Lopez and I am

         14  the Chair of the committee.  I would like to welcome

         15  my colleagues on the committee at this time -- I did

         16  that, I'm sorry. I will introduce them when all of

         17  them get here 'cause they are not here at this

         18  point.

         19                 The emphasis of today's hearing will

         20  be on gathering information and discussing the

         21  services being provided to childrens and adults with

         22  mental retardation and developmental disabilities in

         23  New York City.  The committee will also receive

         24  testimony and vote on Resolution No. 771, which

         25  condemns Governor Pataki's budget proposal for
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          2  fiscal year 2003- 2004 to close the Bronx Children's

          3  Psychiatric Centers, the Bronx Psychiatric Center

          4  and three other adult psychiatric centers that are

          5  located in upstate New York. These psychiatric

          6  centers serve childrens and adults with serious and

          7  persistent mental disabilities throughout the city

          8  and the State of New York.  The delivery of

          9  competent services for people with mental

         10  retardation and developmental disability represent a

         11  critical public health concern through this city and

         12  this state.

         13                 Services to childrens and adults with

         14  mental retardation and development disabilities are

         15  provided through a network of services providers

         16  that include not for- profit agencies, the New York

         17  City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene and the

         18  New York State Office of Mental Retardation and

         19  Developmental Disability.

         20                 The city and the State of New York

         21  have a responsibility to serve childrens and adults

         22  with mental retardation and developmental

         23  disabilities through a competent and trained network

         24  of services provider.  Again, competent.  State and

         25  local government are responsible for providing
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          2  comprehensively- planned services that include the

          3  care, treatment, habilitation and rehabilitation of

          4  this population with mental retardation and

          5  developmental disabilities.

          6                 In addition, these government

          7  agencies are charged with providing services for the

          8  early detection and prevention of mental retardation

          9  and development disability through state mandate

         10  program called the Early Intervention Program.  This

         11  is a comprehensive interagency program for infants

         12  and toddlers up to two years of age.  Effective care

         13  for childrens and adults with mental retardation and

         14  developmental disability require early

         15  identification, intervention and accurate diagnosis

         16  with coordinated and comprehensive delivery of

         17  treatment.

         18                 In many urban areas researchers have

         19  documented striking disparities in the delivery of

         20  mental health services for racial and ethnic

         21  minorities as compare to whites.  Some of the

         22  problems for community subcolors include:  Persons

         23  of color have less access to private insurance

         24  coverage for mental health services.  Persons of

         25  colors often fear treatment in the public health
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          2  system because of different approaches to

          3  communication and language barriers  Persons of

          4  colors also face racism and discriminations as they

          5  are underrepresented in mental health research and

          6  the profession themself.  This often leads to their

          7  receiving a poorer quality of mental health care.

          8                 These government agencies are mandate

          9  to provide services for people with developmental

         10  disabilities and mental retardation and these

         11  services include neurological disorders, such as

         12  cerebral palsy, epilepsy, autism and other disorders

         13  that cause neurological impairments.

         14                 This community is concerned with the

         15  delivery of services to persons with mental

         16  retardation and developmental disability and

         17  especially to the rapidly growing population of

         18  racial and ethnic minorities in New York City.

         19                 Meeting the needs of this population

         20  require a commitment from the state and city

         21  government agencies with regard to funding,

         22  oversight and enforcement. Therefore, I have called

         23  this hearing today because I believe it is important

         24  for this committee to understand the effect of this

         25  vulnerable population, particular of people of all
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          2  ethnicities, of the Governor's proposal to close

          3  five psychiatrics facilities and prominent research

          4  institution. Two of these psychiatric centers are

          5  located in the Bronx, where a large percent of the

          6  population serve our childrens and adults of color.

          7                 It is also important for the

          8  committee to learn about the funding of services for

          9  people with mental retardation and developmental

         10  disability and the network of services providers

         11  serving this population.  These services are

         12  critical to the future of our children, all

         13  residents of the city and for the stability of this

         14  vulnerable population, particularly during this

         15  difficult time.

         16                 For those who would like to testify,

         17  if you have not done so, yes, please see the

         18  Sergeant- of- Arms and fill out an appearance card

         19  so that we can call you to present your testimony.

         20                 In conclusion, I want to also let the

         21  committee understand and the public that the issue

         22  of closing these institutions is not just about

         23  services, it's about the fair share of resources

         24  that the State of New York supposed to allocate to

         25  the City of New York one more time is not happening.
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          2    It's happening with education, it's happening with

          3  health care.  In this occasion now we're talking

          4  about services to the population that is so fragile,

          5  the developmental disability population.

          6                 On this occasion the Governor is

          7  attempting to close hospitals, psychiatric

          8  institutions that are critical to communities that

          9  are located here, particularly the one in the Bronx

         10  that I may say is the only -- that have two units

         11  that are designated to deal with the bilingual

         12  population that speaks Spanish, that need these

         13  services.

         14                 I ask the Governor, what are you

         15  doing?  Are you trying to impair the Latino

         16  community to have access to those critical services,

         17  and that's the reason you're closing these two

         18  particular units?

         19                 I hope that you remember, Mr.

         20  Governor, that you reach out to this city,

         21  particularly to the Latino population to vote for

         22  you to become Governor.  Now it's time for you to

         23  remember that they need the services and those

         24  services, when you close that particular hospital,

         25  what you're doing is destroying that possibility.
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          2                 Without no more, I would like people

          3  to come to the front to testify.  They will be

          4  called by my counselor, Maritza Bolanos.

          5                 MS. BOLANOS:  Elvira Medina, Margaret

          6  Puddington, Enid Lugo, Fred Feibusch, Nellie Velez,

          7  Nadine McNeil and Paula McGrath (phonetic).

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The way that

          9  we're going to organize this panel, the parents are

         10  going to speak first.  The reason is because this

         11  Chair have the sensitivity to understand the needs

         12  of parents with children with disability, different

         13  than the Governor of the State of New York, who

         14  apparently don't have that sensitivity.  This Chair

         15  understand that they need to get back home in order

         16  to be able to pick up the children because, if not,

         17  they will be left on the street without nobody to

         18  care for them. Therefore, the parents will testify

         19  first and then after that I will give my due respect

         20  to the Commissioner of the department and then he

         21  will testify.  But this time he and me and everybody

         22  else have to wait and the parents speak first.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  We have two

         24  additional parents, Sarah Clarke -- I believe

         25  Clarke, yes.  And Robert Campagna.  Please come

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  forward.  Please raise your right hand.  Do you

          3  swear that the testimony you're about to provide

          4  before this committee is the whole truth and that

          5  you will answer Council member questions truthfully?

          6                 MS. MEDINA:  I do.

          7                 MS. PUDDINGTON:  I do.

          8                 MS. LUGO:  I do.

          9                 MR. FEIBUSCH:  I do.

         10                 MS. VELEZ:  I do.

         11                 MS. McNEIL:  I do.

         12                 MS. McGRATH:  I do.

         13                 MS. CLARKE:  I do.

         14                 MR. CAMPAGNA:  I do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: We will start on

         16  my left to your right.  Please proceed and give your

         17  name.  If you're a parent, identify yourself as

         18  such. Thank you.

         19                 MS. LUGO:  My name is Enid Lugo.

         20  Good afternoon.  My name is Enid Lugo.  I'm a single

         21  parent with three special need children.  When my

         22  oldest, when he was a child he was diagnosed with

         23  schizophrenic.  My son was admitted to Bronx

         24  Children's Psychiatric Center.  I thought I lost my

         25  child, I lost my son to mental illness.  My son and

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  I have a great bond.  A bond was broken when he had

          3  mental illness.  Sometimes a mother hopes for the

          4  best for their child, but my son has been at

          5  Daydream (phonetic) for two years and my son has

          6  totally changed.  He understands that he has mental

          7  illness and he lives a normal life.

          8                 Bronx Children was there and still

          9  there for my family.  My youngest child suffers from

         10  depression.  He goes to BCPC day treatment.  Bronx

         11  Children has helped my son how to cope with everyday

         12  life and understand how the medication make him

         13  feel, you know, make him better.  So, he has changed

         14  for the best.  Hopefully he goes to regular school.

         15                 I'm very happy with Bronx Children.

         16  BCBC has done a great job for my two sons.  I know

         17  if I need any help, Bronx Children will be there to

         18  help me and my family.

         19  I ask, please don't close Bronx Children.  Think

         20  about the children and families of the Bronx who

         21  need the facility to help their loved ones.  Thank

         22  you.

         23                 (Applause)

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  You have to stay

         25  there because perhaps the committee want to ask you
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          2  questions about the impact that this will do, but we

          3  have to wait until everybody else testifies.

          4                 MS. PUDDINGTON:  My name is Margaret

          5  Puddington.  I'm a parent of a young man with

          6  multiple developmental disabilities.  I'm also the

          7  Chairperson of the Manhattan Consumer Council, which

          8  is comprised of families of people with

          9  developmental disabilities and self advocates.  The

         10  Council's a subcommittee of the Manhattan

         11  Developmental Disabilities Council which is made up

         12  of provider agency representatives and families.

         13  Both Councils are advisory committees to New York

         14  State Office of Mental Retardation and Developmental

         15  Disabilities and the Developmental Disabilities

         16  Council is an official advisory body to the New York

         17  City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         18                 We would like to address several of

         19  the education issues which fall under the

         20  jurisdiction of both the city and the state.  Much

         21  of the following is based on the legislative agenda

         22  of the Manhattan Developmental Disabilities Council.

         23    We urge the City Council to advocate forcefully on

         24  these issues in order to protect the interests of

         25  all affected children.
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          2                 First Early Intervention, which is

          3  under the jurisdiction of New York State Department

          4  of Health.  Early Intervention provides services to

          5  infants and toddlers age zero to three with

          6  developmental disabilities and delays. Governor

          7  Pataki has proposed that parent fees be imposed for

          8  early intervention services and that the provider

          9  agencies be responsible for revenue collection.  The

         10  Governor's proposed parent fees would deprive

         11  infants and toddlers with disabilities with needed

         12  services.  Appallingly, the greater the

         13  disabilities, the higher the fees would be.  These

         14  fees are an unacceptable surcharge on having a child

         15  with a disability.  Families already burdened by

         16  enormous medical, specialized child care and other

         17  expenses simply cannot afford them.

         18                 The onus of revenue collection must

         19  not be dumped on providers who are already drowning

         20  under ten- year old rates and are not funded for

         21  this task.  The solution is to assign revenue

         22  collection and payment responsibilities to an

         23  essential independent fiscal agent.

         24                 Under the New York State Education

         25  Departments Governor Pataki has proposed eliminating

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  universal prekindergarten, which provides funding

          3  for the nondisabled four year olds to attend

          4  preschool together with disabled youngsters.

          5  Universal pre- K has been an extremely successful

          6  vehicle for integrating children with disabilities

          7  with their nondisabled peers.  Eliminating universal

          8  pre- K means abandoning this New York State priority

          9  while leaving 55,000 four years with nowhere to go.

         10                 Moving on to nonpublic schools.  The

         11  Governor has proposed disallowing use of uncertified

         12  teachers in nonpublic special education schools.  He

         13  would also cut

         14  $2 million for the second year of a Teacher

         15  Recruitment and Retention Program for these schools.

         16

         17                 Nonpublic special education schools

         18  are not private schools, they are a sector within

         19  the public special education services.  In New York

         20  City the Department of Education assigns many

         21  students with extremely severe disabilities to

         22  nonpublic schools because the public schools are

         23  unable to serve them appropriately.  Nonpublic

         24  schools are in a chronic and severe teacher shortage

         25  crisis caused by the State's inadequate
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          2  reimbursement rates.  Because teachers' salaries are

          3  so much lower in nonpublic schools than in the

          4  public sector, the nonpublic schools have

          5  overwhelming recruitment problems and consistently

          6  lose their certified teachers to the better paying

          7  public schools.  Uncertified teachers must then be

          8  hired to fill the gaps.

          9                 To make matters worse, nonpublic

         10  school teachers would actually have their paychecks

         11  reduced if the second year of the Teacher Retention

         12  Program were not funded.  In that case, last year's

         13  investment would become a one- shot salary

         14  adjustment which must now be deducted.

         15                 Moving on to New York City Department

         16  of Education.  Now I'm speaking on my own behalf.  I

         17  would like to comment on the Mayor's newly-

         18  announced special education plans including those

         19  for District 75 which serves children with very

         20  severe developmental and other disabilities.  My son

         21  graduated last year from the District 75 school

         22  where he progressed steadily and learned a great

         23  deal.

         24                 The Mayor's plan seems sound, but I

         25  have the following concerns regarding their

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  implementation.  In educational planning for special

          3  education students top priority must always be the

          4  needs of each individual student.  It is not always

          5  in the student's interest to be included in general

          6  education classes, especially now that class sizes

          7  will not be reduced.  It is not always better to

          8  serve the child in a neighborhood school if a more

          9  distant school offers more appropriate services and

         10  settings.  It is not always within the student's

         11  capacity to follow the

         12  general education curriculum, especially for

         13  students in District 75 which already utilizes

         14  adapted versions that are specifically tailored to

         15  the various functioning levels of its student body.

         16                 Returning special education students

         17  to regular education classes successfully requires

         18  reducing class sizes and providing massive doses of

         19  teacher training, not a couple of one or two- day

         20  workshops.

         21                 Under the Mayor's plan principals

         22  will be evaluated according to how much they reduce

         23  referrals to special education, how many special

         24  education students they return to general education

         25  classes and how well their students do academically.
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          2    Naturally, the principals will want favorable

          3  evaluations and their decisions may be colored by

          4  criteria that conflict with individual student's

          5  best interests.

          6                 I urge the City Council to monitor

          7  carefully the progress of the city students with

          8  special educational needs.  Thank you.

          9                 (Applause)

         10                 MS. MEDINA:  My name's Elvira Medina.

         11    I'm with the Bronx Consumer Council and I'm with

         12  the Leadership Committee in my son's school, which

         13  is P.S. 176.

         14                 There were other parents that wanted

         15  to attend but, unfortunately, they couldn't be here

         16  because of the bus issue, running home to get their

         17  kids, and it takes over an hour to get up to the

         18  Bronx to get their kids off a school bus.  But there

         19  were numerous parents that did want to make a

         20  statement, so I have their statements here for the

         21  Council members, okay, and also a brochure about the

         22  Consumer Council so you know who we are.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Can you do me a

         24  favor to read onto the record the individuals that

         25  you have reading? Mention them and then give it to
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          2  us.  Just read the names onto the record.

          3                 MS. MEDINA:  I have Lucy Giordani.

          4  Her son's name is Michael.  I have Betsy Rosado.

          5  Rocky is her son. Laverne Hamilton and her son's

          6  name is Xavier and Linda Wilkins.  She's from our

          7  school.  She called me actually.  I didn't get her

          8  son's name, but her documentation's here also.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.  We

         10  will make sure that we read these documentation.

         11                 MS. MEDINA:  I'm the parent of a

         12  young man, his name is Ruben Jason Medina.  He is an

         13  autistic individual.  He is 19 years old and he's

         14  mentally retarded. He attends P.S. 176 of District

         15  75 school at Co- Op City in the Bronx.  He is in a

         16  self- contained classroom in a regular education

         17  school which is Truman High School.

         18                 When Ruben was first diagnosed with

         19  autism I was devastated and felt completely all

         20  alone with my son and our problem.  I didn't know

         21  how to work with him.  I couldn't even get

         22  information on autism at the library. Having a

         23  daughter four years his senior I couldn't understand

         24  why all my teaching techniques that worked with her

         25  didn't work with him.  He displayed no eye contact
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          2  with anyone that spoke with him.  He would scream

          3  whenever someone spoke with him or me.  He had no

          4  waiting skills and, with the lack of receptive and

          5  expressive language, he would easily become very

          6  frustrated.

          7                 It was with the help of his

          8  educational program that I learned about autism.  I

          9  also discovered that I wasn't alone with my problem.

         10    I developed skills on how to draw out my son from

         11  his world of isolation, to have him make eye contact

         12  and for him to learn appropriate social behaviors.

         13  Through the school I learned how to work with him

         14  and to create plans that would give him behavioral

         15  self management skills.            He has made many

         16  gains with our partnership with his school.  The

         17  experienced, well- trained, qualified teachers and

         18  related service providers have all contributed to

         19  his improvement.

         20                 The school workshops gave me and my

         21  family information and skills to transfer teaching

         22  techniques taught at the school into the home for

         23  consistency.  The program offered a strong school-

         24  to- home linkage to promote success in all different

         25  domains.  His vocational training worksite this year
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          2  is at Lehman College.  He is part of a four- student

          3  team with a school coach that delivers packages and

          4  mail at Lehman College.  He is happy and excited in

          5  performing his work which gives him a feeling of

          6  self satisfaction and self- esteem.  He has been

          7  able to have many different vocational training

          8  opportunities in exploring his most positive and

          9  productive task experience.

         10                 His school program has taught my son

         11  and our family how to survive.

         12                 There are many changes taking place

         13  within the New York City Department of Education

         14  school district. I am extremely pleased that

         15  District 75 will remain as reported April 4th, but I

         16  have much concern about Chancellor Klein's statement

         17  regarding changes to District 75 as Margaret

         18  mentioned.  Please do not permit the cattle- like

         19  move of District 75 students until we see how the

         20  changes to the Department of Education's other

         21  school districts affect those students.  Give it at

         22  least a couple of years tracking period before the

         23  massive move of District 75 students into the

         24  unsettled changes in the other school districts.

         25  Have the changes monitored by an independent monitor

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  to identify the benefits, the true benefits, to the

          3  student population. Then and only then should there

          4  be any changes even considered to the most

          5  vulnerable student population, that is District 75.

          6  Please continue to secure the educational supports

          7  needed by the students of District 75 so that they

          8  can be successful.  Thank you.

          9                 (Applause)

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Come up to the

         11  microphone, both of you.  You stay there.  Can you

         12  bring your chairs closer to -- one on one side, one

         13  on the other

         14  in order for you to testify, for us to complete this

         15  panel and then we can ask questions.  Thank you.

         16  Either one of you can begin.

         17                 MR. CAMPAGNA:  Good morning.  My name

         18  is Robert Campagna.  I have a four year old daughter

         19  named Ruby who is autistic and I'm here on her

         20  behalf and behalf of other children like her.

         21                 I want to apologize to the committee.

         22    I have no prepared testimony.  I was just made

         23  aware of the meeting very recently and my wife

         24  volunteered me to come up and testify.  So --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  To tell you the
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          2  truth, you been in training for four years to do

          3  this speech. That's the age of your daughter?

          4                 MR. CAMPAGNA:  Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then for four

          6  years you have been in training, that you can do the

          7  speech.

          8                 MR. CAMPAGNA:  Okay.  Well, we'll see

          9  how I do.

         10                 My daughter was diagnosed with autism

         11  just before she turned two years old.  Almost

         12  immediately she started receiving services initially

         13  through early intervention and later through CPSE.

         14  She has a wonderful home- based program of,

         15  primarily of applied behavior analysis, which has

         16  been shown to be very effective in treating children

         17  with autism.  At the present time she has a team of

         18  five behavioral therapists.  They're all young

         19  women.  They're very highly trained.  Many of them

         20  have master's degrees or Ph.Ds in psychology.

         21                 Unfortunately, the State Education

         22  Department has proposed that these very talented and

         23  dedicated teachers will no longer be able to receive

         24  their salaries because they're not certified

         25  teachers.  Up until this time they have been able to
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          2  perform their duties under a temporary certification

          3  system and this temporary certification is being

          4  rescinded by the State Education Department.  This

          5  is going to deal, if it goes through, a devastating

          6  blow both to my daughter's program but to many, many

          7  children who currently receive services like this.

          8  Of my daughter's five therapists only one would be

          9  able to continue working.  I think that the ratio is

         10  quite similar for other therapists who work in this

         11  field.

         12                 I'm here today to ask the Council to

         13  do whatever it can to delay or rescind the State

         14  Education Department's decision to eliminate this

         15  temporary teacher certification which allows so many

         16  of these therapists to work.  Thank you.

         17                 (Applause)

         18                 MR. FEIBUSCH:  My name is Fred

         19  Feibusch and I'm the President of the Bronx Mental

         20  Retardation and Developmental Disabilities Council.

         21  Here I'm not a parent- I'm a parent, but not a

         22  parent of a child affected by these issues directly

         23  today, but I'm here to support all the positions

         24  that were so articulately expressed by the parent

         25  panel.
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          2                 Our Council is organized under

          3  similar auspices to the Manhattan Council, also an

          4  official advisory body to both the state and city

          5  government.  We represent members of over 75 not-

          6  for- profit agencies as well as, I'd have to say,

          7  over 800 parents and advocates.

          8                 Let me just say that, although it's

          9  not one of our direct positions, but we are

         10  definitely in support of the Resolution 771, opposed

         11  to the closure of Bronx State Psychiatric and

         12  Children's Hospital.  We support our colleagues and

         13  friends in that community that is working against

         14  the closure.  Many of our consumers have been served

         15  in that facility and it's a vital service to the

         16  Bronx community.

         17                 I would also like to add that there

         18  is another state facility that is proposed by the

         19  Governor to be closed that does directly affect our

         20  developmentally disabled population and that is the

         21  Institute for Basic Research on Staten Island.

         22  Although it's located on Staten Island, it does

         23  serve consumers throughout the metropolitan area.

         24  It's not just research.  Although their research

         25  function is really unique, its research on
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          2  developmental disabilities and neurological

          3  impairments is really unparalleled.  But they also

          4  provide extremely intensive clinical services and

          5  diagnostic services to consumers in the Bronx as

          6  well as the other four boroughs.

          7                 This is also part of an economy move

          8  and we are advocating that, at the very least, the

          9  direct services be maintained under a private/public

         10  venture.  We do not want to see that facility lost.

         11                 A very important part of our

         12  legislative positions this year has been against the

         13  closure or dismantling of District 75 that was

         14  articulated by some of the panel members here.

         15  While we are pleased to see that our advocacy

         16  efforts were heard and will remain intact, I don't

         17  think we can rest there because we really need to

         18  follow what's in the plan.

         19                 Our position had pushed for a three-

         20  year moratorium before any significant changes are

         21  made while the new Department of Education is

         22  undergoing vast revamping. We did not want to see

         23  the students with the most severe disabilities

         24  adversely affected until the system has had time to

         25  stabilize.  It needs to be carefully evaluated
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          2  before students with severe disabilities are moved

          3  into the newly- organized super districts.

          4                 Also, I'd like to just reiterate the

          5  other two issues that were mentioned here, just very

          6  briefly, because I support what was said.  The Early

          7  Intervention Program which, although it's funded

          8  under the Department of Health, is a New York City

          9  responsibility to implement that program.

         10                 The issues of parent fees and

         11  agencies being held liable to do the Medicaid

         12  billing, insurance, third party payment billing, as

         13  well as Medicaid billing which they are presently

         14  not equipped to do, and which have already been

         15  struggling without fee increases for at least seven

         16  years, to my knowledge, will -- ten years.  It keeps

         17  going up every year.  Will be in severe jeopardy

         18  should these initiatives go through.

         19                 Our positions are identical to the

         20  positions that Mrs. Puddington articulated.

         21                 And finally, the issue of the

         22  nonpublic preschools known as 4410s and the

         23  nonpublic school age schools known as 853s which are

         24  serving publicly- certified students who have the

         25  most severe disabilities which the local school
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          2  districts are not equipped to serve and whose

          3  average disparity between their teacher salaries is

          4  in the neighborhood of $10,000.  It's no wonder that

          5  they have to be -- struggle and be creative to

          6  maintain a qualified faculty.

          7                 The concept of temporary licensure is

          8  the only thing that's enabled these schools to

          9  maintain their regulatory compliance.  On average

         10  50% of their faculty is comprised of individuals who

         11  are working under temporary licenses.  So the State

         12  mandate to eliminate the use of temporary

         13  certification, which would be effective this

         14  September, is a severe threat to the very existence

         15  of those nonpublic schools.

         16                 Thank you very much for the

         17  opportunity to testify.

         18                 (Applause)

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Now, stay right

         20  there. The committee members may ask you questions

         21  or may not.  But part of the testimony -- what is

         22  important is the feedback that you give us.

         23                 Council Member?  No questions?

         24                 I always like to let the committee

         25  members to speak first and then I do.  Feel free to
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          2  interrupt me. Okay.

          3                 Can you, the parents, be more

          4  nonchalant about how it will affect the closing of

          5  the psychiatric institution, in the Bronx, for

          6  example, you have particular interaction with it,

          7  how that will affect the parents if that particular

          8  place is closed.  Particularly. And correct me if

          9  I'm wrong, my understanding is that that's the only

         10  one unit that we have to serve childrens with

         11  developmental disabilities that is bilingual and the

         12  only two units that are here in the city are located

         13  in there, it's my understanding.  If I am wrong,

         14  just correct me.

         15                 MS. LUGO:  Bronx State's the one that

         16  has the two Spanish units.  Bronx Children's

         17  children from five to eighteen for inpatients.  Then

         18  we have four day treatments, that's from five to

         19  eighteen.  That's the outpatient ones.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  How this will

         21  affect your life as a parent of a child who needs

         22  that service if that service doesn't exist no more?

         23                 MS. LUGO:  Where we gonna go?  You

         24  know, I depend on Bronx Children to help my

         25  children, especially my youngest son.  Where's my
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          2  child gonna go, the services to get therapy and

          3  medication.  It's a waiting list just to get -- just

          4  to see a psychiatrist or see a therapist.  It's

          5  almost a year.  For my oldest was almost a year to

          6  see a therapist and a psychiatrist.  So where he --

          7  where these children gonna go?  Where my sons' gonna

          8  go if they close Bronx Children?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Any other person

         10  can speak on this particular issue.

         11                 Do any one of you know if -- is it

         12  the relationship between the different organizations

         13  that serve the not- for- profit organizations, that

         14  serve children with developmental disabilities or

         15  with epilepsy that sometime in the case of epilepsy

         16  children exhibit symptomatology that look like a

         17  schizophrenia but it's not, if this particular

         18  psychiatric center serve your individual population?

         19                 MR. FEIBUSCH:  Well, although we've

         20  been talking about two sort of distinct service

         21  arenas, two different distinct populations and two

         22  distinct funding streams.  The Bronx Psychiatric

         23  Centers that are at question here, the adult center

         24  and the children's center are funded through the New

         25  York State Office of Mental Health.  Many of the

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  services that individuals, or children and adults

          3  with mental retardation and developmental

          4  disabilities are funded through the New York State

          5  Office of Mental Retardation and Developmental

          6  Disabilities.

          7                 Although we have advocated as two

          8  distinct groups, there are individuals who were

          9  known in the field as dually diagnosed, who may have

         10  a primary disability of mental health and a

         11  secondary disability of mental retardation or just

         12  the opposite.

         13                 The fact is that anybody in the

         14  population may need psychiatric services and is, I

         15  think, entitled to received them close to home,

         16  particularly if somebody doesn't have the resources

         17  to travel great distances.  I do know that there are

         18  individuals in our mental retardation community who

         19  have received services at Bronx Psychiatric,

         20  that dually- diagnosed population.  So, it would be

         21  a hardship, certainly, and, in many ways, would

         22  discourage people from seeking services if that

         23  facility is closed.

         24                      We don't have a direct position,

         25  and since we're operating on the other service
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          2  arena, we don't have the detailed information, and I

          3  know that there are advocates here today who came to

          4  support particularly against closure of the Bronx

          5  Psychiatric Center, we're concerned as well because

          6  it's the loss of another facility, local, sensitive

          7  to the community and certainly to the Spanish-

          8  speaking community would be a great loss.

          9

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  In regard of the

         11  other issues that each and every one of you

         12  mentioned, I want to inform you that I, together

         13  with all the Council members, I don't know the names

         14  of the Council members who are involved in this

         15  resolution, but we have two resolution pendings in

         16  the Committee of Education.  One is asking that the

         17  question of the certification for teachers in the

         18  different facilities that you mentioned, for

         19  example, be exempt and that that particular rule

         20  don't be applied.

         21                 In regard of the issue that you

         22  mentioned about the school aid -- what are the two

         23  numbers?

         24                 MR. FEIBUSCH:  4410s, which is the

         25  pre- school programs and the 853s, which is the
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          2  school- aged programs.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  We also put a

          4  resolution in regard to that and it's pending in the

          5  Committee of Education.  I wanted to see if we could

          6  handle that in here, but it was not possible.  Then

          7  I'm going to make everything possible to push for

          8  the approval of those resolutions because I

          9  understand how critical it is.  But I suggest that

         10  the community call the Chair of Education on this

         11  particular issue to move those resolutions forward

         12  before the budget is being looked at in order to be

         13  able to help the childrens that you mention.

         14                 You mentioned that your daughter was

         15  diagnosed when she was two years old.  Why was that?

         16                 MR. CAMPAGNA:  She was, I guess the

         17  easiest thing to say is that she wasn't developing

         18  the way other children were developing with regard,

         19  particularly with regard to her interpersonal

         20  communication, her social relatedness.  She had poor

         21  eye contact.  She had some language which she

         22  stopped using.  My wife had been a little bit

         23  concerned for many months before my daughter was

         24  diagnosed, but we just wrote it off to our being

         25  overly concerned parents  Eventually the differences
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          2  between our daughter and other children and her

          3  peers became evident and the diagnosis was made.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The reason I ask

          5  you that question is because I wanted to know if you

          6  received information, if you received some

          7  educational information that alerted you to the

          8  question.  Because I had hear of a lot of parties

          9  whose diagnosis for the children had taken a long

         10  time.  Then I'm surprised that in your case the

         11  child was two years old.  I want to know how was it

         12  that you were aware of what was happening that

         13  allowed you to then seek information to get the

         14  diagnosis?

         15                 MR. CAMPAGNA:  It's a big problem and

         16  a very common problem with regard to children with

         17  autism.  Many children are diagnosed at a much later

         18  age than they really need to be diagnosed and that's

         19  particularly important because early intervention,

         20  with a small "e" and a small "i", can make a

         21  tremendous difference in the prognosis in this

         22  disorder.  I have spoken with many parents who

         23  brought their concerns to their pediatrician to be

         24  told that not to worry, the child will develop,

         25  children develop at different rates and so forth.
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          2                 There are efforts being made to

          3  educate pediatricians on how to use the tools that

          4  are known to aid in the diagnosis of autism.  I

          5  can't give you a particular explanation as to why we

          6  made a diagnosis early and why a diagnosis was made

          7  early in our daughter.  I'm very thankful that it

          8  was.  She's done wonderfully with the services that

          9  she's received so far, but it's a very big problem

         10  and education, not just of parents but particularly

         11  of caregivers and pediatricians and teachers in

         12  daycare centers and even home caregivers can help to

         13  make the diagnosis earlier in many, many children.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  In critical

         15  intervention at an early time was very important for

         16  your daughter --

         17                 MR. CAMPAGNA:  Absolutely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  -- To be able to

         19  maximize her development.

         20                 MR. CAMPAGNA:  Absolutely.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Would you said

         22  that that's the same for everybody in the table?

         23                 MS. MEDINA:  My son was born in '83

         24  and he was a little over two when I started to see

         25  that his development was just not right.  He was

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  gaining a few words of language and then he was

          3  losing them altogether.  He just was not developing

          4  right, and every time I went to the pediatrician

          5  they'd say, "Oh, each child develops differently.

          6  Don't compare him to your daughter."  I says, "I'm

          7  not comparing them, I'm just trying to find out why

          8  he is not -- "He has words that he's attained and

          9  language and then, all of a sudden, they're gone,

         10  he's lost them."  It's as if all the effort that I

         11  was trying to have him build up his vocabulary was

         12  just being erased and I wanted to know why.

         13                 Then one day at my house my husband

         14  sit on one side of the room and I sit on the other

         15  side with Fischer- Price instruments making noises

         16  to see if maybe it was his hearing 'cause we didn't

         17  know why he was losing the language.

         18                 I mean, we started looking for

         19  answers and we were not getting it from the

         20  pediatrician, so I insisted, have his hearing

         21  checked, and when I went to Presbyterian Hospital,

         22  that's when they noticed that something was wrong.

         23  Right away they had him evaluated and they

         24  identified that he had learning disabilities.  They

         25  identified   So, he went to Birch and that's when --
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          2  his early intervention was where they really

          3  identified, and they started working with him and he

          4  started getting speech.  They also were very good

          5  with giving me the inroads of having parents

          6  meetings to come to terms with it all, 'cause it is

          7  very devastating, especially when you don't know

          8  what steps you should take as a parent, how can you

          9  help your child.  It's something we all want to do,

         10  but we don't have the instruments until we get to

         11  the teaching staff of Early Intervention Programs

         12  and in our educational schools that can help us.  If

         13  we don't have the properly- trained staff to do

         14  this, which is not easy, then it makes it even more

         15  impossible for us.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  What it will do,

         17  suppose, I understand, early intervention, early

         18  diagnosis, we accomplish all that with all of the

         19  parents of childrens who are out there and we have a

         20  perfect world in regard of early intervention,

         21  diagnosis.  But then we don't have pre- K, universal

         22  pre- K, we only have pre- K for children with

         23  developmental disability as is proposed now.  What

         24  it will do to have the elimination of the rights of

         25  noncertified teachers in this particular facilities?
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          2    What will be the impact on this, having early

          3  intervention, early diagnosis done.  You have all

          4  that wonderful, it happen, and then you don't have

          5  universal pre- K to integrate the childrens in a

          6  less frustrating setting.  Because you eliminate it

          7  for the rest of the population, you are not

          8  eliminate it for the children with developmental

          9  disabilities, then what good that does?  Can you

         10  explain to me what is the consequences of that?

         11                 MS. MEDINA:  The hope of every parent

         12   -- when they first informed me of the Birch School,

         13  I said great, I'll get him in there, let's get him a

         14  head start, maybe I can get him going so that I can

         15  get him to go to school with my daughter at a

         16  parochial school that she was attending. That was

         17  the goal.  But, you know, as a parent I had to be

         18  realistic.  My first and most important thing is

         19  doing what's right for him, not having it be

         20  convenient that I go to one location when I take

         21  them to school.  So that took priority.

         22                 He started at Birch when he was close

         23  to three years old and when he was coming close to

         24  five years old I had to realize, okay, where is the

         25  place for him that he's going to maximize and
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          2  develop the most in him so that he can progress the

          3  best.  That wasn't going to happen where my daughter

          4  was attending school.  So that's when I started

          5  exploring schools that did offer him -- they had

          6  training of ABA in our school.  They had different

          7  techniques and formats of teaching individuals with

          8  autism.  They have -- teach different formats.  What

          9  they do is identify which format would be best for

         10  the particular child.  Even though there are many

         11  children that have autism, there's such a vast range

         12  that each child has to be approached individually in

         13  a teaching format that's best for them, their best

         14  learning format, to do -- to have as much gain as

         15  they possibly can.  That's what they do in our

         16  school.

         17                 Actually, when he was increased pre-

         18  K, they were working with him trying to develop him

         19  and identify him and they were teaching me skills

         20  there, too.  They had parents groups to help us come

         21  forth to do the best we could at home with our

         22  children.

         23                 Speaking for myself, my purpose at

         24  first with Birch was to get him to have as much gain

         25  there so, hopefully, he can go to regular ed.  But
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          2  most important, when he reached that age of five,

          3  was that he needed to go where he was gonna develop

          4  and have the most educational gains possible for

          5  him, not a convenience.  I wait for a bus in the

          6  morning to get my son to go to school.  But you know

          7  what?  The program that's right for him is on the

          8  other side of the Bronx and that's where I'll send

          9  him.  If I've got to stand out there an hour and a

         10  half every morning, I don't care.

         11                 They mention in one of the articles

         12  from Chancellor Klein that they were trying to get

         13  people -- children back into the neighborhood

         14  schools because they didn't want them to have these

         15  long bus rides.  But you know what?  That bus ride

         16  is trivial compared to the gains that he will have

         17  if he goes to the proper program.  I don't want my

         18  son to go down the block to P.S. 7 or even to where

         19  my daughter went, Visitation, because they don't

         20  have what he needs.  I don't want him to sit there

         21  and take up space and waste his educational years

         22  that are most valuable to me.  I want him to develop

         23  as much momentum in gains of language, behavioral

         24  skills and growth within himself so that he can

         25  function as much independently as possible.  If P.S.
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          2  7 doesn't have it and Visitation doesn't, I don't

          3  mind waiting for a bus.  If the Mayor's or

          4  Chancellor Klein's concern is to not have them have

          5  such a long transportation ride, then they should

          6  focus in on lessening the bus route.  If that is his

          7  concern.  Okay?

          8                 (Applause)

          9                 MS. MEDINA:  So, I saw it

         10  differently.

         11

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I thank you.  I

         13  don't have no more questions.  I don't know if my

         14  colleagues do.

         15                 Yes, Councilman?

         16                 MS. PUDDINGTON:  Could I Just add one

         17  thing to what Elvira said?  My son is different from

         18  Elvira's and different from this gentleman's.  My

         19  son has multiple developmental disabilities, not

         20  autism.  But the thing that all these children have

         21  in common is that they have very complex needs.

         22  It's not a simple matter to educate them, it's not

         23  done just by common sense.  Most of us have said

         24  that we learned as parents from the expertise of the

         25  staff
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          2  that exist in all of these different programs at all

          3  the different levels, and it's really true.

          4                 When they insist on certification,

          5  it's going to be the death blow to these programs.

          6  We've got to have people with expertise.  They've

          7  got to continue their education.  If they make it

          8  impossible for us to provide even that level, these

          9  programs are going to go under and those children,

         10  who the public schools refuse to serve right now,

         11  are gonna be left with nothing.

         12                 MR. FEIBUSCH:  If I could just add,

         13  Council Member Lopez, your concern about the

         14  elimination of funds under the Governor's budget for

         15  universal pre- K, while it affects obviously the

         16  general population, it also has a direct impact on

         17  the nonpublic preschools, because they are under

         18  state regulatory mandate to develop a business plan

         19  to guarantee that a certain proportion of their

         20  programs are inclusionary.

         21                 The way the schools have been able to

         22  achieve that goal is through universal pre- K in

         23  which case some of the very exciting models have

         24  been developed to have -- typically developed for

         25  children in integrated classrooms. There are

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  children with more severe disabilities who are best

          3  educated in self- contained classrooms, but they've

          4  been successful under funding for universal pre- K

          5  to develop inclusionary models.

          6                 So, we're in a larger boat with

          7  everybody else in the state on the elimination of

          8  UPK, which we are very much concerned about as well.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I wanted to

         11  comment on the certification issue.  See, I agree

         12  with you that we, in the State of New York, should

         13  do nothing to interfere with the progress of the

         14  students.  That's primarily. Ideally having state-

         15  certified teachers is the ideal situation, and I

         16  think we all agree with that.  But to insist that

         17  this happen at this particular point in time to the

         18  detriment of the clients that are being served, then

         19  who are you really helping?  No one.  The students

         20  are being hurt in reality.  So, as a member of the

         21  Education Committee, that Margarita Lopez indicated,

         22  that the two resolutions are in front of the

         23  Education Committee, I will be advocating that we do

         24  nothing to hurt the progress of the students that

         25  we're talking about.
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          2                 MR. FEIBUSCH:  If I could just

          3  respond, our position is -- also has the element

          4  that if the Governor is at this time willing to fund

          5  the nonpublic schools at the rates that would

          6  support competitive salaries that certified teachers

          7  are getting in the public sector, we'd be happy to

          8  adhere to that standard.  But at the present

          9  disparity that is as much as $10,000 a year, what

         10  happens is that our schools will work with people to

         11  achieve that certification and then as soon as they

         12  get it, they're gone.  Again, we're happy to work if

         13  we have a level playing field in terms of our rates.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I totally

         15  agree with you.  As the lead plaintiff in CFE v.

         16  State of New York I know about competitive salaries

         17  and about our children not being given the

         18  opportunity to a sound, basic education to achieve

         19  whatever they want to be when they grow up as

         20  adults.  So, I truly understand that.

         21                 Let me ask each and every one of you

         22  a question, and you can answer this by a simple yes

         23  or no or you can expand on it if you want.  Knowing

         24  what you've gone through as parents and

         25  understanding the situation that's in front of us
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          2  now, do you feel that the closure, the proposed

          3  closure of these facilities will be in the best

          4  interests of your children

          5                 UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  No.

          6                 UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE:  No.

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  No.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Say it on the

          9  microphone.

         10                 UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  No.

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE:  No.

         12                 MS. MEDINA:  No, it would not be and

         13  they wouldn't have any anywhere else to go.  Unless

         14  they're going to create another place where they can

         15  receive the services that they're receiving now,

         16  then definitely not.

         17                 UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  The answer is no.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now, I do

         19  understand that we're in a budget situation.  I

         20  think all of us are very realistic, but I've talked

         21  to parents up at Bronx Psych Center, I've talked to

         22  staff there and they have indicated to me that the

         23  Governor's priorities are in the wrong place, that

         24  the priorities should be of maintaining services for

         25  the people of our great city and great state.  Do
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          2  you feel that the Governor's priority to cut the

          3  services is the right direction that we should be

          4  heading in as the City of New York and as the state

          5  government?

          6                 MR. FEIBUSCH:  Again, I'm not as well

          7  informed on the broader issues as some of the other

          8  panel members, but I can answer your question with

          9  regard to the teacher certification.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I don't want

         11  you to answer the teacher certification.  I know you

         12  do read the newspapers and I know you listen to the

         13  news.  New York City is facing a $4 billion deficit

         14  and the State 11 billion. But the Governor, to the

         15  best of my knowledge, is still proceeding with the

         16  tail end of a tax cut, even though we're facing this

         17  $11.5 billion deficit.  So, my question is a general

         18  one in the whole scheme of the entire state and city

         19  situation.

         20                 MR. FEIBUSCH:  Well, of course not.

         21  I don't --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, is it

         23  of course not?

         24                 MR. FEIBUSCH:  I think it's of course

         25  not.  I think this is a very broad question but

                                                            52

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  certainly a tax cut in this context I think is

          3  completely inappropriate.  I also think that a lot

          4  of the budget cuts that are being proposed are

          5  counterproductive, particularly with regard to

          6  children and adults with developmental disabilities

          7  who, in the long run, if they receive the services

          8  that they require and will benefit from at a younger

          9  age, in the long run they will be less of a

         10  financial burden to the state and city and federal

         11  government.  They'll be -- a higher percentage of

         12  these children will grow up to be independent and

         13  require fewer services.  So, I think it's a short-

         14  sighted budget cut.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Any

         16  other comments?

         17                 MS. PUDDINGTON:  I believe, and I

         18  think many of us in the developmental disabilities

         19  community also believe, that it's essential to

         20  provide basic services. It's essential to keep our

         21  children, not only maintain the services but develop

         22  them, and if that requires a tax increase, we

         23  support the tax increase.

         24                 MS. LUGO:  I have to say no, not to

         25  close Bronx Children because parents depend on Bronx
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          2  Children. You can, they can raise the tax all they

          3  want, but I worried about the children, you know,

          4  what will happen to these children, where is their

          5  future if they don't know how to cope with life and

          6  take medications.  Kids out there, where they gonna

          7  go?  I feel bad they're gonna be lost.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  My

          9  perception as a Council member representing northern

         10  Manhattan and as someone that has to look at it from

         11  a citywide perspective on the entire budget and

         12  knowing that we do communicate with our colleagues

         13  in the State Assembly and State Senate, that we need

         14  to be able to put the money up front now rather than

         15  spend five and six times much on the tail end.  I

         16  think it's short- sighted if we don't provide the

         17  services that are necessary to help your children to

         18  be as independent as possible, to grow up to having

         19  the opportunity to be whatever they want to be,

         20  knowing that they have a disability or -- and we're

         21  all not at the same level.  Even you and I are

         22  different.  We're all different as individuals, but

         23  if we're provided with the opportunity early on then

         24  the less down the road as far as the state, federal

         25  government or the local municipality will have to
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          2  spend to ensure that the people of this great state

          3  are receiving the adequate services that are

          4  necessary.  So, I want to provide the resources up

          5  front rather than down at the tail end.

          6

          7  Thank you, Madam Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you to all

          9  of you. I appreciate very much your testimony.  Now

         10  you can go and take care of your children.  I thank

         11  you for coming here today.

         12                 (Applause)

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Our next

         14  witness is Assistant Executive Commissioner, Lloyd

         15  Sederer, for the New York Department of Public

         16  Health and Mental Hygiene.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Commissioner, I

         18  hope that you understand that I needed to let you

         19  for second term in this one, and I know that you do.

         20                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  I appreciate

         21  the sensitivity to the parents that you've shown.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Welcome.  It's

         23  good to see you again.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Raise your

         25  right hand. Do you swear that the testimony you're
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          2  about to provide before this committee is the whole

          3  truth and that you will answer Council member

          4  questions truthfully?

          5                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  I do.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

          7  Please proceed and state your name for the record.

          8                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  My name is Dr.

          9  Lloyd Sederer.  May I just say a word before

         10  beginning?  I've left with Anne two documents for

         11  you, Madam Chairwoman.  One is a prepublication

         12  document of the New York City Vital Signs. We've

         13  talked about that before, and this refers to the

         14  community survey conducted by the Department of

         15  Health and Mental Hygiene and in particular the

         16  focus of it on mental health here in the city.  This

         17  shows some of the work, epidemiological work, that

         18  we're doing that you've expressed an interest.  Too,

         19  that will be issued shortly.  That one on top is a

         20  prepublication draft.

         21                 The second is a document called "City

         22  Health Information," also a publication of our

         23  department.  This one on PTSD but we will shortly

         24  have one on mental retardation.

         25                 Yes, those are the two just for your
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          2  information.  Excuse me?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  So, we only have

          4  these ones here or --

          5                 DR. SEDERER:  This one is yet to be

          6  released. It'll be released shortly.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  And this

          8  one?

          9                 DR. SEDERER:  This one we have -- I

         10  have a second one here, but we can certainly supply

         11  your office with more of those.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Can you supply

         13  each and every member of the committee with this

         14  information, if you don't mind, to mail it to them.

         15                 DR. SEDERER:  Surely.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And if you supply

         17  it to my office, it will be also useful because I

         18  can distribute it.

         19                 DR. SEDERER:  Will do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         21                 DR. SEDERER:  Let me introduce also

         22  Associate Commissioner Charles Browning in our

         23  mental retardation section.

         24                 Good afternoon.  I'm Dr. Lloyd

         25  Sederer, Executive Deputy Commissioner for Mental
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          2  Hygiene at the New York City Department of Health

          3  and Mental Hygiene.  I am here today to provide an

          4  overview of the systems that deliver services to

          5  people with mental retardation and developmental

          6  disabilities in New York City and to describe the

          7  department's role.  I appreciate your efforts on

          8  behalf of all New Yorkers with mental retardation

          9  and developmental disabilities.  Thank you for

         10  holding this hearing today.

         11                 Developmental disabilities include

         12  mental retardation, cerebral palsy, epilepsy,

         13  neurological impairment and autism.  They are

         14  usually present at birth, continue through life and

         15  impair a person's ability to function independently.

         16    Conservative estimates put the number of people

         17  with developmental disabilities at nearly 1.6% of

         18  the U.S. Population.  In New York City that

         19  translates to about 128,000 people.  Soon, though,

         20  we will, for the first time, have actual population-

         21  based information on the prevalence of developmental

         22  disabilities in New York City.  That is because the

         23  department is incorporating detailed questions on

         24  developmental disabilities into its second community

         25  health survey to be conducted later this year.
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          2  Parenthetically, that prepublication draft is a

          3  product of the first community health survey and the

          4  second one will include these questions pertaining

          5  to developmental disabilities.  The survey, which

          6  provides community- specific data about both health

          7  and mental hygiene issues affecting city residents

          8  is one of the ground- breaking initiatives made

          9  possible by the synergies achieved through the

         10  merger.             The needs of people with

         11  developmental disabilities vary widely.  At one end

         12  of the spectrum are those requiring life- long total

         13  care.   At the other are people who will attain

         14  complete independence and require just minimal or

         15  periodic support services.

         16                 Developmental disabilities are not

         17  entirely preventable so they will be with us for the

         18  foreseeable future.  In addition, as medical care

         19  has improved, more individuals with mental

         20  retardation are living longer, resulting in a

         21  shifting age profile of the population.  The ongoing

         22  issue for our society and our city is not whether

         23  services are need but what services will be

         24  provided, how and by whom.

         25                 Until about 25 years ago the
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          2  prevailing approach was to place people with

          3  developmental disabilities in large institutions for

          4  life.  In the early 1970s one of these institutions,

          5  Willowbrook State School on Staten Island, was

          6  exposed by the press as keeping residents in

          7  horrible living conditions.  This led to a class

          8  action lawsuit that forced the review of the state

          9  system of institutional care and resulted in a

         10  settlement that initiated a long transition to a

         11  community- based system of services.  Today most

         12  people receive services in much more appropriate

         13  community- based settings.

         14                 The department has played a key role

         15  in the development of services and remains one of

         16  the MR/DD community's key components along with the

         17  State Office of Mental Retardation and Developmental

         18  Disabilities or OMRDD. Other governmental agencies

         19  such as the State Education Department including

         20  VESID and the City Department of Education,

         21  voluntary service providers and consumers, families

         22  and advocates.  Services today are based on person

         23  centered planning and geared to maximizing and

         24  sustaining the ability of people with disabilities

         25  to function independently and reach their full
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          2  potential in the community.

          3                 The continuum of services begins with

          4  those provided to infants and their families through

          5  the department's Early Intervention or EI Program.

          6  The EI Program provides a variety of therapeutic and

          7  support services to infants and toddlers from birth

          8  up to age three who have an identified disability or

          9  developmental delay.

         10                 EI's goal is to identify children

         11  with developmental delays as early as possible since

         12  research has shown that the sooner they get help,

         13  the better their chances of reaching their full

         14  potential.  All New York City families are eligible

         15  for the EI Program regardless of income or

         16  citizenship.

         17                 We are doing active outreach,

         18  particularly to neighborhoods that traditionally

         19  underutilize services and to parents of very low

         20  birthweight infants to ensure that New Yorkers most

         21  in need of these services have the maximum chance of

         22  accessing them.  Outreach to parents of every low

         23  birthweight child in New York City would not have

         24  been possible without the merger of the two former

         25  departments and it's another good example of the
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          2  kind of synergies which are being achieved through

          3  the merger.

          4                 Another major impact of the merger

          5  has been our ability to focus on enrolling children

          6  who are receiving EI services and their families in

          7  health insurance through the department's Division

          8  of Health Care Access and Improvement.  This

          9  initiative is a real win- win.  Children enrolled in

         10  Medicaid and other insurance programs have much

         11  better access to medical and other services, and the

         12  city saves millions of dollars in funds because of

         13  the federal and state matches for Medicaid

         14  recipients.

         15                 Through this and other initiatives

         16  the merger has saved the department literally tens

         17  of millions of dollars, averting many painful cuts.

         18  Many programs operating today would have had to be

         19  closed if these savings had not been realized

         20  through this merger.

         21                 When a child reaches age three the

         22  Department of Education or DOE assumes

         23  responsibility as the primary provider of services.

         24  The Early Intervention Program assists that

         25  transition by helping families apply for services to
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          2  the Committee on Preschool Special Education. With

          3  written parental permission all of the child's Early

          4  Intervention Program evaluation records are shared

          5  with that committee.  At the age of five, if

          6  continuing services are still warranted, the child

          7  may transition into the school system's special

          8  education program.

          9                 Although school is the central

         10  activity, school- aged children and their families

         11  receive a number of other services funded by the

         12  State and our department.  The services funded by

         13  the State include respite care, parent training,

         14  recreation and family reimbursement, which enables

         15  families to purchase items required for the care of

         16  their disabled child that are not funded through

         17  other sources. The department funds summer camp

         18  programs, after- school and weekend respite programs

         19  that provide a structured environment with trained

         20  staff and offer a variety of activities including

         21  recreational and basic skills work.

         22  Other department- funded programs for school- aged

         23  children include specialized diagnostic, evaluation

         24  and treatment clinics operated by voluntary agencies

         25  and the Health and Hospitals Corporation and
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          2  information, referral and counseling services

          3  specifically for individuals with Tourette's

          4  Syndrome, epilepsy and learning disabilities.

          5  The department also provides funding as a last

          6  resort for medical and dental services through the

          7  Physically Handicapped Children's Program.

          8                 For adults, the MRDDC community

          9  offers a range of residential day and family support

         10  services and vocational programs.  Community

         11  residential services and most adult day program

         12  services are provided by the State. The department

         13  provides vocational training and employment programs

         14  for adults who need a different kind of service than

         15  those offered by the State or may not be eligible

         16  for state services.  For example, our work readiness

         17  and transitional employment programs help graduates

         18  of the

         19  special education school system enter the working

         20  world.  We also fund programs targeted at

         21  specifically the senior citizens with developmental

         22  disabilities.

         23                 It is worth noting the difference

         24  between the City and State in terms of number of

         25  programs funded and expenditures.  The City is proud
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          2  of the array of services it offers.  We contract for

          3  115 programs at a gross budget amount of $61 million

          4  per year.  Our programs generally fill gaps and

          5  provide services not funded by the State.  Some of

          6  them, such as our adult continuing special education

          7  program and the counselling program for people with

          8  Tourette's Syndrome are unique in New York State.

          9                 By contrast, however, the State

         10  spends at least $1 billion a year in New York City

         11  on community- based services to people with mental

         12  retardation and developmental disabilities.

         13  Importantly, about 70% of the State's expenditures

         14  are for residential programs.  Housing and

         15  residential services are, of course, key issues.

         16  The demand for community residential services has

         17  long outweighed the supply in the city and elsewhere

         18  in the state.  Yet remarkable progress in meeting

         19  demand has been made thanks to the New York State

         20  CARES program, a five- year plan created by the

         21  State in 1999 to eliminate waiting lists for

         22  residential placements of individuals with

         23  developmental disabilities.  As of November 2002

         24  this program has created 1,611 new beds with another

         25  1,056 in development in New York City.  We are very
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          2  pleased that the Governor's budget includes full

          3  funding for a fifth year and a proposal to extend

          4  the program through a New York State CARES II

          5  initiative.

          6                 Under state law local government is

          7  given a key role in delivering MR/DD services,

          8  particularly in the area of planning.  In fulfilling

          9  its mandate, the department develops an annual local

         10  plan at the borough level that includes a

         11  description and analysis of the service system, an

         12  assessment of need and the establishment of

         13  priorities for service organizations and

         14  development.  DOHMH collaborates with consumers,

         15  voluntary agency providers and representatives of

         16  other city and state agencies in the planning

         17  process.  The preparation of the 2003 to 2005 local

         18  government plan is currently underway.

         19                 One of the distinguishing features of

         20  the city's MRDD community is the close cooperation

         21  among the various participants in maintaining its

         22  partnerships with consumers the department relies

         23  heavily on the five borough Councils which are part

         24  of the department's federation advisory structure.

         25  These Councils serve as critical forums for

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  information exchange and discussion.

          3                 The City and State each monitor the

          4  performance of publicly- funded voluntary provider

          5  programs. Because of both the variety of services

          6  and their specialized nature, effective monitoring

          7  requires a high level of expertise and experience.

          8  We also rely on ongoing consultation and

          9  collaboration with service providers.

         10                 The division's Planning Bureau is

         11  launching a new initiative to better measure the

         12  program performance of our contract agency providers

         13  with a particular focus on MRDD service providers.

         14                 Before closing, I want to note that

         15  June is Mental Retardation Developmental

         16  Disabilities Awareness Month in New York City.  This

         17  year's commemoration will feature events in three

         18  boroughs that are organized by the federations MRDD

         19  Councils.

         20                 Also, as part of the MRDD Awareness

         21  Month, the department is planning a conference in

         22  conjunction with Yeshiva University's Albert

         23  Einstein College of Medicine to discuss recent

         24  developments and ethical considerations in the area

         25  of genetic testing.
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          2                 Later this year the department will

          3  publish a special MRDD edition of the City of Health

          4  Information, or CHI, bulletin, which is distributed

          5  to all physicians in New York City. The CHI that I

          6  gave you was the one on PTSD which is an example of

          7  one that we've already done.  This special edition

          8  on MRDD aims to help close the knowledge gap about

          9  mental retardation and developmental disabilities in

         10  the medical community.

         11                 Services for people with

         12  developmental disabilities must be preserved.

         13  Because if the nature and variety of disabilities,

         14  highly specialized and individualized services have

         15  been developed.  Early detection with active

         16  treatment and services have maximized the potential

         17  for independent living.  We have seen that the more

         18  we can promote health and independence among people

         19  with developmental disabilities, the more we lessen

         20  the familial and social burden while decreasing the

         21  need for more intensive and costly services.  As we

         22  face these difficult times I believe that the City

         23  must continue in its role as a key leader in the

         24  operation and preservation of New York City's vital

         25  service network for people with developmental
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          2  disabilities.

          3                 This concludes my testimony.  I'm

          4  happy to answer your questions at this time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you, sir.

          6  Any questions from the members of the committee at

          7  this point?

          8  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I know that

         10  one of our agenda items today is to think about the

         11  facilities in the Bronx and I just didn't know, is

         12  that something that your Albany office is lobbying

         13  on?

         14                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  I'm not

         15  prepared to say what we're lobbying on.  I can say,

         16  as I have said before, that it's our view as an

         17  agency that care for every individual is best done

         18  in the community.  We have concerns about the

         19  capacity issues that could result from these

         20  closures and we are looking into that, mindful of

         21  the fact that we're again concerned that service

         22  capacity be maintained.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes, sir.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Doctor, good
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          2  afternoon.  My name is Robert Jackson.  I represent

          3  northern Manhattan on this City Council.  As the

          4  Executive Deputy Commissioner has the New York City

          5  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene looked at

          6  the proposed closures and/or cuts that have been

          7  proposed by the State of New York and determined

          8  what type of impact that would have on the people of

          9  this great city and also the impact it would have on

         10  the New York City Department of Health and Mental

         11  Hygiene in fulfilling its mission and carrying out

         12  the mandates of servicing our people?  And I say

         13  that in the context of this:  Under the Governor's

         14  proposed budget, the Institute for Basic Research on

         15  Staten Island, which does research for mental health

         16  issues, is scheduled to be closed if the Governor

         17  had his way.

         18                 Number two, the Psychiatric Institute

         19  up in upper Manhattan, where I live at, is a

         20  nationally known in both IBR and psychiatric

         21  instituters, nationally known for the type for

         22  research they're doing in order to help people with

         23  mental illness.  They're scheduled to be downsized

         24  in this whole planned budget.  The proposed closure

         25  of Bronx Psych Center, Bronx Children's Psych
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          2  Center, I believe that's in the year 2005, along

          3  with the closures of other mental hygiene facilities

          4  upstate, has the New York City Department of Health

          5  and Mental Hygiene looked at these proposed cuts,

          6  consolidations and closures as to what impact it

          7  would have on the people of this great city?

          8                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  Councilman

          9  Jackson, I thank you for your question.  I would

         10  like to answer it in particular related to some of

         11  the service implications that are proposed.  Our

         12  mission and our mandate has to do with services.

         13  Our agency may indeed share with you the importance

         14  about research, which we do, or I do, but that is

         15  not within the scope of our responsibility.  So, we

         16  are watchful over the research activities but that

         17  is not an area where we would take a responsible

         18  role.

         19                 That said, with IBR, we recognize

         20  that there are actually quite a large set of

         21  services going on in IBR that serve a broad

         22  population with many, many complex needs and that

         23  specialty knowledge and specialty services are --

         24  indeed may be very unique there and hard to discover

         25  anywhere else.  We have actually begun and are
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          2  undergoing a process of looking at those services,

          3  looking at who was served, how they're served and

          4  whether alternatives exist. So, yes, as far as IBR

          5  is concerned, we indeed have begun ourselves to do

          6  an analysis of the implication of the potential

          7  closing of the service component of IBR.

          8                 Similarly, we share, as I said, the

          9  concern about the services provided both at the

         10  adult and child hospitals in the Bronx as to whether

         11  any closure of service is there, what impact that

         12  would have on capacity.  We intend to be part of

         13  looking at that carefully with any proposals that

         14  develop as to how services might be otherwise

         15  located or provided.  We are, also, concerned that

         16  services be accessible and we do recognize that what

         17  can be done in the communities may be desirable to

         18  what can be done in the hospitals, but we want to

         19  make sure that intensive services are retained.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Allow me to

         21  interrupt you for one minute.  I am interested in

         22  the following thing: It's true or not that we

         23  discharge individuals from our hospitals, meaning

         24  the city hospital, who are in the psych units of our

         25  city hospitals to these facilities when the long-
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          2  term psychiatric care is required?  And what would

          3  be the consequences of also not having that facility

          4  when our hospital has to discharge these individuals

          5  who need the service for a long- term process.

          6                 (Applause)

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Isn't that true?

          8                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  Yes it is, and

          9  that the State facilities serve a different role in

         10  the care system.  The acute care facilities is

         11  represented by the Municipal Hospitals and General

         12  Hospitals --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Exactly.

         14                 COMMISSIONER. SEDERER:  -- Serve a

         15  more short- term service and the State facilities

         16  provide more intermediate or longer- term care.  So,

         17  when we think about capacity, we think about not

         18  acute care capacity, but longer- term capacity.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then, in other

         20  words, what I'm seeing in here is that if these

         21  psychiatric institutions are closed, we are going to

         22  overburden our system for a long- term care that is

         23  necessary --

         24                 (Applause)

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  -- That we are
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          2  not prepared to produce and put in place because

          3  that's not the purpose of our acute units.  The

          4  purpose of our units in the system that we have at

          5  the level of the City are for something else.  We're

          6  going to overburden the City ones. On top of that,

          7  the residents of the cities are not going to get the

          8  long- term care that they need, that the State is

          9  obligated to provide to us.  And if this goes down,

         10  at the end will increase our budget gap because then

         11  we have to allocate more resources, therefore, the

         12  city's residents are not only losing in services,

         13  are losing also in the fair exchange of reinvesting

         14  our tax dollars in the State back into here.  That

         15  is correct?

         16                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  I assure you

         17  that the implications are both, the clinical and

         18  financial, and that when we look at what anything

         19  that is proposed, we have to be looking at the

         20  potential to care for people in a longer term way,

         21  whether it's in hospital settings or community based

         22  services with intensive services attached, that we

         23  want to look at the special needs of people whose

         24  care needs to continue beyond acute care.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That's why,

          3  Doctor, I asked you whether or not the New York City

          4  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene has

          5  evaluated the proposed cuts and closures and what

          6  impact that's going to have on the residents of New

          7  York City.  So, in essence, what I'm hearing from

          8  you, it's going to have a devastating impact. I

          9  would assume then that the New York Department of

         10  Health and Mental Hygiene and the Commissioner, and

         11  you're the Deputy Executive Commissioner, you would

         12  oppose these proposed closures and cuts, is that

         13  correct?

         14                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  What I'm say

         15   --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  If you can

         17  answer yes or no.

         18                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  What I'm

         19  saying are that these are proposed cuts.  We don't

         20  know what the alternatives yet clearly are in terms

         21  of what appropriate clinical services might supplant

         22  these.  So, we're not in a position to comment yet

         23  because we don't know what the proper alternatives

         24  are.  We are concerned about the capacity and the

         25  needs of these people and these special populations,
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          2  but until we know one way or another what other

          3  services might serve in their stead, I don't think

          4  we're in a position to comment.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And so far,

          6  the State of New York has not said if any

          7  alternative plans are being made, is that correct?

          8                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  I believe that

          9  there are some ideas, but there's not -- I don't see

         10  there's a process that needs to go on.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Doctor, but

         12  my question to you is whether or not New York State

         13  has indicated that something is going to replace

         14  Bronx Children's Psych Center and Bronx Psych Center

         15  at this point in time.  Because I tell you, as a

         16  state legislator, I have not heard of anything.

         17  Have you?  Have you, Doctor?

         18                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  I have not

         19  seen a formal plan.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, that's

         21  what I thought.  That's what I thought.

         22                 Left me just ask, the last comment

         23  is, you indicated that you have borough boards of

         24  constituent- based individuals.  I mean, all of the

         25  individuals that were sitting up there, that panel
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          2  of about five parents, if you asked them, they all

          3  would say no to the closure.  You sat here, you

          4  heard their testimony, isn't that correct?

          5                 (Applause)

          6                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  Yes, I did.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Do you know

          8  of any groups that are advocating that it should be

          9  closed, Doctor?

         10                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  I don't.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you,

         14  Doctor.  I would like to ask you one last question.

         15  Your testimony is very important today.  You gave me

         16  a lot of information that I'm going to process.

         17  This is the opening of this living room, what I

         18  call, from my part to the community with

         19  developmental disabilities.  I'm looking forward to

         20  have a lot of many meetings in regard to this in

         21  here.  There's one question I want to ask of you and

         22  is, had you been in negotiations, conversations,

         23  communications with the Commissioner of Education,

         24  right?  That's the appropriate title?

         25                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  I believe the
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          2  Chancellor?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yeah.

          4                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  Yeah.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I have problems

          6  with the title of the Chancellor because the other

          7  structure was as Chancellor but now it's under the

          8  city.  Then I don't know what to call him.  But

          9  whatever the title is, had you been in conversations

         10  with his administration in regard of these changes

         11  in the educational structure that is going to impact

         12  this particular community of children in ways that

         13  are different for the older childrens and that some

         14  implementations of policies need to be very

         15  carefully implemented because it can harm them?

         16                 Had you been in conversations with

         17  them, communication, discussions about how to

         18  approach this particular community?  Because I don't

         19  believe that on the educational arena they can make

         20  decisions without including you and I need to know

         21  if that has happened and if it's not happen yet can

         22  you please reassure me that you're going to

         23  intervene for that to happen?

         24                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  The plan about

         25  special education was release, I believe, last week.
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          2    We have not been in conversations about that plan.

          3    My division has not. There may be other

          4  conversations going on through other divisions in

          5  the Health Department but the Mental Hygiene

          6  Division has not been in conversations about that

          7  yet.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then it's

          9  critical -- and I'm asking you, and I know that the

         10  Bloomberg administration has always been very

         11  decent, at least I can say without hesitation with

         12  this committee, on the issues that I bring forward

         13  to you.  To this day I don't have no complaint.  I'm

         14  asking you, and I'm asking you to ask to the Mayor,

         15  specifically, that you need to look at what's

         16  happening in the educational department of the City

         17  in connection to the entire population that is

         18  served under developmental disabilities and mental

         19  retardation.  Decisions cannot be made in there

         20  without your participation, it's my opinion.

         21  And it's my opinion that this committee also should

         22  be involved.  These decisions are going to be lethal

         23  at the end of the day if they are not in

         24  consultation with you.  And I know that the

         25  administration will appreciate my request.  I know
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          2  the Mayor is a very sensible individual.  I know

          3  that he will listen to what I'm saying.  Can you

          4  please pass that message on these proposals of the

          5  elimination of pre- K. Without taking into

          6  consideration the impact of the mental retardation

          7  and developmental disability it's absurd to

          8  implement these policies from the Governor without

          9  doing it in consultation with the department.  Same

         10  thing about the certification of teachers.  Absurd

         11  also to do it without that consultation to happen.

         12  And it will not be a savvy decision to make without

         13  you.

         14                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  I will pass

         15  that message along.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.  I

         17  always thank you for your intervention.

         18                 The last thing that I want to make --

         19  you see this?  I suggest that your office make

         20  available this pamphlet to all of the parents of

         21  District 1 and District 2. With that I am not saying

         22  that this pamphlet is not important to anybody else,

         23  but the reason I'm saying that is that when

         24  September 11 occurred the childrens of the District

         25  1 and children in District 2 were the ones who
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          2  witnessed September 11 from very close by.  And the

          3  parents of those two school systems should receive

          4  this brochure 'cause they can diagnose early signs

          5  of this disorder in the children for being witnesses

          6  to September 11.  It will be a good therapeutic

          7  measurement to take for early diagnosis for them.

          8                 I think this is brilliant, by the

          9  way. Congratulations on this.  Thank you very much.

         10  Now we're going to pass to the next panel.  We're

         11  going to vote in regard to the resolution we have in

         12  place.

         13                 COMMISSIONER SEDERER:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  We going to begin

         15  the voting at this time, but before call the panel

         16  and seat them there, please?

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  The next panel

         18  is Abraham Benjamin, Roger Benson, Arlene Barst and

         19  Sylvia Lask.

         20                 We can proceed with the vote now.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  No?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No, you're

         24  jumping me. You need to wait for a minute.

         25                 Roger, I need your testimony to be
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          2  done and then after your testimony we immediately

          3  going to testify, can you please sit immediately?

          4  You do your testimony. We're going to stop the

          5  testimony of everybody else and we're going to take

          6  a vote after Roger give his testimony.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  If you could

          8  please raise your hand and I'll swear everyone in at

          9  the same time. Do you swear that the testimony

         10  you're about to provide before this committee is the

         11  whole truth and you will answer Council member

         12  questions truthfully?

         13                 MR. BENJAMIN:  I do.

         14                 MR. BENSON:  I do.

         15                 MS. BARST:  I do.

         16                 MS. LASK:  I do.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Okay, Mr.

         18  Benson, please proceed.  Thank you.

         19                 MR. BENSON:  Good afternoon.  My name

         20  is Roger Benson --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Press the

         22  button, please.

         23                 MR. BENSON:  Good afternoon.  My name

         24  is Roger Benson.  I'm President of the New York

         25  State Public Employees Federation representing
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          2  55,000 member across New York State and more than

          3  10,000 in New York City, including 2800 members who

          4  work at the New York State Office for Mental Health

          5  Facilities within the five boroughs.

          6                 I'd like to thank Council Member

          7  Lopez for introducing this resolution as well as the

          8  committee and the entire Council for considering

          9  this resolution.  It captures the essential elements

         10  of the crisis now facing mentally ill New Yorkers,

         11  the adverse impact on children and adults with

         12  mental illness, the absence of a plan for adequate

         13  alternatives to the closures and the blatant

         14  violation of the one- year notice provision of the

         15  mental hygiene law.

         16

         17  If these closures occur, the hole in New York

         18  State's safety net will start to represent the hole

         19  in the ozone layer.

         20                 These closures proposals demonstrate

         21  a callous disregard for the hardships that will be

         22  imposed on parents and their families.  For lack of

         23  a real statewide comprehensive plan, patients will

         24  suffer from facility closures that occur without

         25  replacement of services in their home communities.
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          2  Patients will be unable to take advantage of the day

          3  passes and home visits that are essential to

          4  reintegration into the community.  It will be much

          5  more difficult to schedule regular family therapy

          6  sessions or consultation with the school, social

          7  services or other social service personnel.

          8                 These transfers pose tremendous

          9  difficulties for patients and their families.  The

         10  additional travel time will undoubtedly stand in the

         11  way of some patients ever receiving treatment.  This

         12  is a population which has difficulty with the normal

         13  activities of daily living. Often with ambivalence

         14  towards coming to a hospital for mental health

         15  treatment.  Adding the burden of lengthy and

         16  complicated transportation may be a roadblock to any

         17  treatment at all.  Reliance on public transportation

         18  may necessitate considerable expense as well as

         19  several hours of travel time each way to visit

         20  family members.  The proposed relocation facility,

         21  Pilgrim Psychiatric Center, is out on Exit 53 of the

         22  Long Island Expressway, almost inaccessible without

         23  a car.  Clearly the upstate designers of this

         24  proposal do not realize that downstate distance is

         25  calculated in time, not in miles.
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          2                 The programs at Bronx Psychiatric

          3  Center and Bronx Children's Psychiatric Center are

          4  designed to treat the heavily minority population

          5  from which their inpatient population is derived.

          6  Bronx Psychiatric Center is the only location in the

          7  state with Spanish- speaking wards.  Programs are

          8  geared to the psychiatric and cultural needs of the

          9  Hispanic patient and their families.  Staff are

         10  fluent in the language and customs of the Hispanic

         11  and Latin American countries and communities.  These

         12  variables are fully integrated in the provision of

         13  treatment and other services and closely embrace

         14  family and friends in programs and cultural events.

         15                 The bottom line, Madam Chair, is if

         16  this proposal is implemented, the Bronx will be the

         17  only borough in New York City not to have a major

         18  mental hygiene facility.

         19                 (Applause)

         20                 MR. BENSON:  I ask you to also

         21  consider the impact of this budget on the important

         22  research into mental and developmental disabilities

         23  at two research centers, including the Institute for

         24  Basic Research on Staten Island and the New York

         25  State Psychiatric Institute, both of which are in
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          2  New York City.

          3                 The proposed cuts to research are

          4  false economy.  Each of these facilities brings in

          5  substantial federal research revenues.  Nine million

          6  at the Institute for Basic Research and over $84

          7  million at the New York Psychiatric Institute, which

          8  supports hundreds of research foundation positions

          9  over and above the State- funded positions.

         10                 The closure of IBR will deprive more

         11  than 2,000 New York City families of vitally-

         12  important clinical services as well as eliminate

         13  over 4,000 evaluations per year for adults and

         14  children with mental retardation and developmental

         15  disabilities.

         16                 The cuts at New York Psychiatric

         17  Institute will also threaten both clinical and

         18  research activities. PI provides clinical inpatient

         19  and outpatient services for over 1,000 individuals

         20  with severe mental illness.  These unique community-

         21  based services including treatment for Hispanic

         22  mentally ill, adolescent sex offenders, mentally ill

         23  chemical abusers and the deaf mentally ill.

         24                 It is clear that the closure and

         25  downsizing of these valuable psychiatric centers and
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          2  research facilities is a bad deal for all New

          3  Yorkers.  It is a terrible deal for New York City

          4  residents.  We propose instead a fair state budget

          5  which would impose a temporary tax surcharge on the

          6  personal income tax of wealthiest New Yorkers and

          7  close corporate tax loopholes which together will

          8  raise over $4 1/2 billion a year and save the

          9  essential services that I've described here today.

         10                 (Applause)

         11

         12                 MR. BENSON:  New York's richest

         13  individuals and corporations are already receiving

         14  windfall federal tax cuts thanks to the Bush

         15  administration.  They should carry their fair share

         16  of the State's fiscal burden that's as a result of

         17  9/11, rather than placing a greater burden on the

         18  mentally ill and the mentally disabled in New York

         19  City and in New York State.

         20                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         21  present this testimony.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.  Stay

         23  right there in the table.  We're going to take a

         24  vote and then we will continue with the testimony

         25  and then we go into questions.
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          2                 We're ready.

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  Foster.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  May I be

          5  excused to explain my vote?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  First, I'd

          8  like to thank you, Chairperson, for having the sense

          9  to bring this resolution and, thank you, President

         10  Benson, for testifying. I feel like I just need to

         11  say ditto in terms of what is happening in Bronx

         12  County.

         13                 As a Bronx legislator, it would be

         14  remiss of me to just say aye without thanking you

         15  for coming to testify and let you know that you are

         16  preaching, in my case, to the converted.  What is

         17  happening and what we're doing to the mentally ill

         18  in this city and the state is egregious. We would

         19  not deny a diabetic of insulin, but we think it's

         20  okay to say to the mentally ill we have nowhere to

         21  place you.

         22                 (Applause)

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  As parents

         24  testified, we have this plan in terms of we're gonna

         25  close it but there's nothing in place in terms of
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          2  what we're gonna do with the adults, the children

          3  that need the facility and the family members that

          4  rely on it.  Again, it is an example for me that the

          5  Governor just has no respect for the city and

          6  especially for Blacks and Latinos, because Bronx

          7  County is the poorest county in New York City.  When

          8  you decide to hit the poorest, when you decide to

          9  hit Blacks, when you decide to hit Latinos, it's a

         10  problem.  We have to stop trying to stop balance the

         11  budget on the backs of the poor, Blacks, Latinos,

         12  women and, in this case, the mentally ill.

         13                 So, I adamantly vote aye and look at

         14  this as the beginning of the fight and not the end.

         15                 (Applause)

         16                 UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  Brewer.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I'd like to

         18  vote aye, add my name to the resolution, and just

         19  state -- I know earlier you heard from parents,

         20  Madam Chair, I'm sorry I wasn't here.  I just want

         21  to add that I spent a great deal of time at the

         22  Micky Mantle School, which is on 82nd and West End

         23  Avenue, which is the 75 School.  I was their

         24  principal for the day.  I'm on the advisory board.

         25  We raise funds.  Those children wouldn't have a
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          2  future if it wasn't for the kinds of services that

          3  that district offers in that particular community

          4  school.

          5                 But more importantly, also, I have a

          6  son who has taken advantage of some of these state

          7  facilities.  So, I'm very familiar with what they

          8  offer.  Incredible staffing.  Sort of something that

          9  you don't find perhaps in any other services, that

         10  kind of commitment.  In addition, I didn't know

         11  until now, that this is the only Spanish speaking

         12  community.  And it really becomes a community when

         13  you are part of the family that is dealing with

         14  these facilities.

         15                 So, I adamantly join my colleague

         16  here and vote aye.

         17                 (Applause)

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Yassky.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  I'm just glad

         20  for your leadership, Chair Lopez, and, also, I

         21  really can't add to the remarks of my colleagues

         22  here.  I think it's a disgraceful decision to do

         23  this, and I fully support the resolution.  I vote

         24  aye.

         25                 (Applause)
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lopez.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  As the Chair of

          4  this committee, most likely than not, I would be

          5  inclined to take these issues to my heart.  But in

          6  this particular case, I must point out that the

          7  issues go beyond services to the mentally ill, to

          8  the developmental community.  It go beyond all that

          9  because the proposal of the Governor is talking

         10  about dismantling economic development in the Bronx.

         11    It's not only the services that are at stake in

         12  here, it's also the jobs that he's taking with it.

         13                 (Applause)

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  It's not only the

         15  services, it's also the investment in the Bronx.

         16  It's not only the jobs, the investment, the

         17  services, it's also placing an unfair burden on the

         18  health system that we have in the city through the

         19  Health and Hospitals Corporation without providing

         20  to us in the city a system that would allow long-

         21  term care to take place for the residents of our

         22  city to have their loved one.

         23                 The proposal come from a sick mind

         24  and from nothing else.  When I said "sick," I'm not

         25  talking about mental illness.  I'm not talking about
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          2  a disorder that don't allow you to develop yourself.

          3    I'm talking about ill conceived in your heart

          4  because what is speaking about, it's about this

          5  investing in New York City, making sure that this

          6  diverse integrated city of our doesn't thrive and

          7  doesn't succeed.  That's what this is about at the

          8  end of the day. And the policies of the Governor are

          9  clear to me. Everywhere disinvest in New York City

         10  and make sure that New York City doesn't exist as we

         11  know it today.  Because, apparently New York City

         12  for the Governor of the State of New York is a place

         13  that he doesn't like.

         14                 For those reasons I vote aye on this

         15  resolution.

         16                 (Applause)

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Saying that,

         18  please continue with your testimony.  Thank you,

         19  Council members.

         20                 The vote is going to remain open

         21  because I have one more member of the committee who

         22  is coming -- and I don't need to keep it open, he's

         23  just here.  Then I can announce the final vote of

         24  it.  Hold it a minute.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member
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          2  Gennaro.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By vote of five in

          5  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          6  abstentions, the item is adopted.  Council members,

          7  please sign the committee report.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The item is

          9  adopted. Thank you.

         10                 (Applause)

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you,

         12  Council members.

         13                 MR. BENJAMIN:  Good afternoon.  My

         14  name is Abraham Benjamin.  I'm the President of CSEA

         15  Local 401 at Bronx Psychiatric Center.

         16                 Madam Chair, you have my testimony in

         17  front of you.  I would like to submit it and speak

         18  about certain issues, yes.  Because if I was to read

         19  it, it would be repetitive of Mr. Benson.  So, I

         20  want to give you some examples why I know and it's

         21  important why I feel that way for my members and the

         22  families and the patients that we serve, 'cause I

         23  also have a family member who is at that hospital.

         24  I've witnessed, I've been part of helping our

         25  consumers get better.  When they recover, being
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          2  productive in our society, that's how we know what

          3  we've done has been helpful.  And it's done in the

          4  community.  We don't have no traveling to all ends

          5  of the earths.  We've witnessed some people at one

          6  time when we sent some of our consumers up to

          7  Rockland.  What happened to them?  They were lost.

          8  End up coming back into the city and they were

          9  homeless.

         10                 We need to be there for our family

         11   'cause if you live in the Bronx we're all one, we

         12  are family.  And we need to keep the services and

         13  the facilities in the Bronx. We need it for our

         14  family members, for our consumers and for ourselves.

         15  That's what's the most important thing.

         16                 You said something, it is kind of

         17  amazing that a man could want to shut down a whole

         18  service and does not have a comprehensive plan.

         19  He's obviously told us he doesn't care about us,

         20  okay.  The corruption that has been seen in certain

         21  things that he did with the nursing homes and things

         22  of that nature is worrying about the money, not the

         23  services that people need.

         24                 We need to make sure, and I'm honored

         25  that your Council has supported this, but we need
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          2  the keep the pressure on to make sure that was do

          3  not sit on the sidelines while they try to deprive

          4  the people who need our help the most.  Besides our

          5  jobs, my members love what they do and they feel

          6  it's very important.  Thank you.

          7                 (Applause)

          8                 MS. LASK:  My name is Sylvia Lask and

          9  I am Past President of the Board of Visitors of

         10  Bronx Psychiatric Center.  I've been on the Board

         11  for almost 24 years and have served as President of

         12  the Statewide Association of Boards of Visitors for

         13  four years.  I'm also a parent of a 42 year old

         14  daughter who is a psychiatric patient.

         15                 I want to thank you, Councilwoman

         16  Lopez, for introducing this resolution.  Your voice

         17  and the voice of your colleagues is important to us,

         18  the advocates, and we thank you.

         19                 This a joint statement from the Board

         20  of Visitors of Bronx Psychiatric Center and Bronx

         21  Children's Psychiatric Center.

         22                 As members of the Boards of Visitors

         23  we are volunteer advocates for the mentally ill who

         24  are receiving care and treatment at Bronx

         25  Psychiatric Center and Bronx Children's Psychiatric
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          2  Center.  Our role is to be part of a team that

          3  ensures that the care and treatment offered to the

          4  mentally ill at state- operated facilities is of

          5  high quality.

          6                 The Bronx is a borough that is

          7  underserved in all respects.  It is a segment of

          8  society that continues to be ignored by the

          9  majority.  Poverty, unemployment, deteriorated

         10  housing, hopelessness and substance abuse are all

         11  part of the problems in the Bronx.

         12                 Now, New York State is planning to

         13  take away its only state facilities that serve the

         14  seriously and persistently mentally ill adults and

         15  seriously emotionally disturbed children and

         16  adolescents of the Bronx.  This plan will have a

         17  devastating impact on the mentally ill population of

         18  the Bronx and their families.

         19                 How will this plan affect the Bronx?

         20  The Bronx will be the only borough in the

         21  metropolitan area with out a hospital for the

         22  severely mentally ill to receive services in their

         23  own community.

         24                 Most families in the Bronx travel by

         25  public transportation and will have a hardship
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          2  traveling to hospitals outside of the borough to

          3  visit their loved ones, especially families

          4  traveling with young children and senior citizens.

          5  This will likely result in reduced visiting and

          6  hamper the patient's recovery.  This will also limit

          7  the family's ability to participate in the treatment

          8  process, making discharge planning and reintegration

          9  into the community more difficult, resulting in

         10  increased hospital stays.

         11                 Patients transferred to different

         12  hospitals will have to adjust to new staff.  This

         13  will be very difficult and could be traumatic for

         14  this population and could also extend the length of

         15  their hospitalizations.            There will be

         16  more homeless people.

         17                 When the hospital closes the Bronx

         18  will lose many jobs.  This will have a significant

         19  effect on our economy in the Bronx.

         20                 Once again the people of the Bronx

         21  will be ignored and their needs will not be met.

         22                 The Bronx will regress.

         23                 Thomas Henry Huxley said, "The rung

         24  of the ladder was never meant to rest upon but only

         25  to hold a man's foot long enough to enable him to
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          2  put the other somewhat higher."

          3                 During the past 12 years the Bronx

          4  has been climbing rung over rung and it has

          5  progressed tremendously.

          6  The Bronx was selected as an all- American city for

          7  its progress and we do not want to regress.  Now the

          8  State is about to take away the ability to move

          9  ahead and provide the highest level of services for

         10  our neediest population.           There is a group

         11  of people in the Bronx that have stood through the

         12  heaviest of storms and they stand together now.

         13  This plan cannot move forward.

         14                 (Applause)

         15                 MS. BARST:  Good afternoon.  My name

         16  is Arlene Barst.  I'm just a concerned relative.  My

         17  brother's been hospitalized since 1964 at Bronx

         18  Psychiatric Center, before that at Harlem Valley

         19  State Hospital up in Wingdale, New York.  It's a

         20  life- long situation.  We traveled up there to

         21  Harlem Valley and now here.  I have very short

         22  visits when I do go, but the doctors tell me they

         23  are quality visits.  For me to have to travel for

         24  five hours for a 15 or 20- minute visit seems

         25  absurd.  Not a good situation.  It would be a
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          2  hardship for me to travel to these distant places.

          3                 They did try to put him in a nursing

          4  home and he had an incident there and he was

          5  returned to Bronx Psychiatric Center.  He's 65 years

          6  old now.  He's been sick for 48 years.

          7                 Thank you for listening.

          8                 (Applause)

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I have a

         10  quick question for Mr. Benson.  I think one of the

         11  issues -- I know when I worked for the City in

         12  Washington, the federal government is always trying

         13  to close down facilities in the City of New York and

         14  I'm sure the State is trying to do the same.  I'm

         15  wondering, I hope this doesn't happen, we'll all

         16  fight to try to ensure that it doesn't happen, but

         17  what does -- do you hear that the State is just

         18  trying to move the services to an upstate facility?

         19  I always think they do it, as the Chairwoman

         20  suggested, for economic development as opposed to

         21  program purposes.  Have you heard anything along

         22  those lines?

         23                 MR. BENSON:  In this particular case

         24  my understanding is that two different classes of

         25  the mentally ill would be moved to Creedmore in
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          2  Queens and to Pilgrim Psychiatric Center, as I

          3  indicated in my testimony, in Suffolk County.  So,

          4  it doesn't appear that this is a economic shift

          5  upstate, but, as I indicated --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Long Island

          7  for us is upstate.

          8                 MR. BENSON:  Okay.  But what it does

          9  has been reinforced by a number of there folks here

         10  at the table is that it creates now hours long trips

         11  or maybe even day- long trips rather than staying

         12  within the Borough of the Bronx. Even Commissioner

         13  Stone admitted to me five years ago in a

         14  conversation about closures, that at some point it

         15  would not be possible to close any more facilities

         16  because the travel time would become too great.

         17  Sadly, he and the Governor have now attempted to

         18  break his own commitment to us.  We think that if

         19  there is one single reason to reject this budget

         20  proposal, it's that the travel times for consumers

         21  and parents and family just becomes obscene.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I just wand

         23  to add something.  This may not be true, but my son

         24  was in Manhattan in the Forensic Unit and obviously

         25  what happens as you move out -- he was able to do so
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          2   -- then you have to have travel plans.  You

          3  obviously get time to go overnight or time to take a

          4  day trip depending on what level you're at.  What

          5  I'm just saying is, in general, you need to be, as a

          6  patient, nearby to do that.  You can't sort of

          7  travel from Rockland County or upstate -- so there's

          8  lots of reasons, not only for the family, but also

          9  for the patient to be close by.  So, thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I have a series

         12  of questions I would like to ask 'cause I want to

         13  understand the legality of this proposal to begin

         14  with.

         15                 It is my understanding that in order

         16  for the Department of Mental health of the State to

         17  close a facility like Bronx Psych, for example, that

         18  they have to go through the whole process of

         19  allowing a common process, an alternative plan being

         20  put in place with specific details of that

         21  alternative plan is going to be fulfilled.  That

         22  this has happened?

         23                 MR. BENSON:  No.  Let me comment on

         24  that and then perhaps my colleague from CSEA wants

         25  to chime in, too.
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          2                 Both PEF, CSEA and NYSCOBA, the union

          3  that represents correction officers, have filed suit

          4  in Supreme Court in Albany to block the closure

          5  because the State of New York is violating Section

          6  717 of the mental hygiene law which requires them to

          7  provide one- year written notification before

          8  closure of any facility and to provide an

          9  alternative plan for services.  They have not

         10  provided either of those legal requirements.

         11                 Based on that, we received a

         12  temporary restraining order approximately two weeks

         13  ago, and after tomorrow the judge is then going to

         14  rule on papers whether or not a temporary injunction

         15  against the closures will be put in place.  This

         16  should stop the State permanently from moving

         17  forward.  But, of course, what we would prefer is

         18  that the budget amendment be defeated completely.

         19  We've taken legal steps to protect our clients and

         20  protect our members.  We also want the Legislature

         21  to also implement legislation to protect them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But when you said

         23  that -- let me address it and then I ask the

         24  question.

         25                 Address what you were going to
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          2  address.  I'm sorry.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Our biggest

          4  problem, and even when we started talking to the

          5  state legislators, the Governor and Commissioner

          6  Stone do not want to, it seems like, make a

          7  comprehensive plan.  Okay.  It seems like their job

          8  is they want to get out of the business of mental

          9  health.  Okay.  That's what it seems to a lot of us

         10  because there's no plan in place to even think about

         11  what are you going to do when you close down these

         12  facilities, what you're going to do with these

         13  patients, how you're going to incorporate the family

         14  in their treatment.  The family and relatives are

         15  very important in their treatment.  So, if you're

         16  going to send a long distance, that means you're

         17  giving disregard to their family and that's an

         18  important factor in their treatment.

         19                 There was a meeting, I believe, and

         20  Mr. Benson can correct me, about a month or two ago

         21  and he admitted there was no comprehensive plan.

         22  Until this date they haven't even attempted to make

         23  a comprehensive plan. We have lobbied and talked to

         24  them about certain ways that they can do it, but

         25  they haven't given the legislators any kind of idea.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  My question is to

          3  the following thing:  They have not put the

          4  comprehensive plan. They have been violating the

          5  regulations that had been created in order to close

          6  down a facility like that, et cetera, et cetera, et

          7  cetera.  For now you may succeed in the court

          8  system, but the attempt to close the facilities is a

          9  clear philosophy of the Governor.  Because, if not,

         10  he would come with a different proposal.  Then,

         11  let's say you succeed now, legally speaking because

         12  they are not in compliance with all of these aspects

         13  of the law, in the mental hygiene law, but once they

         14  comply with that, then that means that they can

         15  proceed with the proposal to close it.  My question

         16  there for you is, independently of the legal

         17  possibilities that we have there to stop it, what

         18  are the need reasons why this place have to be open.

         19    In the context of where in the State are

         20  facilities that provides two wards that have

         21  bilingual requirements.  Do you know? That's number

         22  one.

         23                 Number two, in term of the amount of

         24  beds that are necessary for long- term care in the

         25  City of New York when our hospitals can no longer
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          2  retain somebody who suffers from mental illness, how

          3  many are those beds?  Do you know?  In the city.

          4  And if those beds will be able to fulfill the need

          5  that we have in term of the demand that the

          6  residents of the City have.

          7                 MR. BENSON:  Let me respond to the

          8  first question and then, perhaps, there are others

          9  that have more specific information on bed numbers.

         10                 Clearly in my testimony and in the

         11  comments of my CSEA colleague, it's well

         12  acknowledged that Bronx Psychiatric Center is the

         13  only psychiatric center in the State of New York

         14  that has Hispanic wards.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  In the entire

         16  state?

         17                 MR. BENSON:  In the entire state.

         18  So, the overwhelming majority, I believe 97% of the

         19  children and 84% of the adults, are Hispanic

         20  speaking.  If they get moved to Creedmore or to

         21  Pilgrim, they're not going to be dealing with staff

         22  or colleagues that are lingual in their native

         23  language.

         24                 In terms of beds, let me tell you

         25  that it is clearly the State's intent to downsize
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          2  the mental health system and while I need to be fair

          3  to Governor Pataki, it is not Governor Pataki that

          4  began this effort.  It is Governor Cuomo before him

          5  and Governor Carey before him.  Their intent is

          6  clearly to reduce the cost to State budget of mental

          7  health treatment.  The reality is that the mentally

          8  ill are not a politically- organized advocacy group.

          9                 There is not a powerfully political

         10  reason to cater to them or to their families.  It is

         11  left to labor unions and the advocates to do that.

         12  We do the best we can but, sadly, big business

         13  speaks louder than we do on the issue of mental

         14  health.  Unfortunately, the mentally ill don't have

         15  a coherent lobby group.

         16                 Perhaps you'd like to comment on the

         17  bed numbers.

         18                 MS. LASK:  I just want to comment

         19  again --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The microphone.

         21                 MS. LASK:  I'm sorry.  I just wanted

         22  to comment on what you said about the political

         23  activity.  It's so true, because in OMRDD you have a

         24  vice- president who went on national television and

         25  spoke to his four year old granddaughter who is
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          2  retarded and nobody shut the door and everybody

          3  stood up.  You have a president who did not hide the

          4  fact that he had a mentally retarded sister.

          5  However, you had one vice- presidential candidate

          6  admit that he had taken shock treatments 20 years

          7  before his candidacy came to light and the whole

          8  world turned around and said we couldn't have it.

          9                 The mentally ill do not have a

         10  political group that speaks loud enough and that is

         11  because everybody is afraid to admit to the fact

         12  that they have somebody in their family.  It is only

         13  when we get somebody like Betty Connelly, former

         14  Assemblywoman Elizabeth Connelly, who is willing to

         15  get up and tell the story of her family member that

         16  you get people to listen.  It's when we get people

         17  who are respected in the community who are willing

         18  to come out and admit that in their family there is

         19  somebody who is suffering from this illness that we

         20  get the attention that we need.  So that's one

         21  thing.

         22                 I do not, I'm sorry to say, have the

         23  bed numbers with me.  But each hospital is filled.

         24  That much I can tell you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  To capacity.
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          2                 MS. LASK:  To capacity.  There are

          3  closed wards because we have downsized, but the

          4  whole system has been downsized.  Again, to send our

          5  patients out to Pilgrim is disgraceful.  The thought

          6  of it is disgraceful to the family members in the

          7  Bronx.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  As far as

          9  the numbers, I can tell you exactly the numbers that

         10  are as present today.  As you said, it's not because

         11  we could not bring in more patients if we needed to,

         12  the problem is they downsized.  So, like she said,

         13  they've closed down wards. They've eliminated beds.

         14  At the adult site at this present time we have 376

         15  and at the Children's I believe it's 43 as of last

         16  week.  But there is room.

         17                 MS. LASK:  376?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, I'm

         19  just telling you what they told me.

         20                 UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE:  Seventy- eight.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Seventy-

         22  eight?  See, 'cause it's changed up 'cause when they

         23  discharge.  As of last week.  So, it's there but

         24  they don't want to use us, and the problem is we

         25  give the best care.  They want to downsize, they
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          2  want to send them -- and I think corporate business

          3  is trying to get in 'cause -- there's 2600 beds and

          4  we, at least, want some of them to stay in our

          5  community.

          6  They haven't allowed us any discussion on how many

          7  beds are going to come to OMH.  Twenty- six hundred

          8  beds.  Okay.  So, where are those beds going to go?

          9  Who are going to take care of the patients that we

         10  know how to take care, keep them in the community

         11  where they can get the best services and be around

         12  their family?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Do you know if

         14  there is any for- profit company who is interested

         15  in providing this kind of services, in the realities

         16  of privatization, by any chance?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That's what

         18  we've been told, yes.  They've been up there -- a

         19  matter of fact, last month, if I remember, when we

         20  were up there to lobby some legislators, all the

         21  presidents in CSEA across the State went up there on

         22  this issue and we ran into some people from those

         23  organizations lobbying for those beds.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Interesting.  Do

         25  you know if there's any interest in the area where

                                                            109

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  the hospital is located for other kind of

          3  development to take place?

          4                 MS. LASK:  Prime property.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Can you comment

          6  on that, please?

          7                 MS. LASK:  The area is prime

          8  property.  It's right off the Hutch and the former

          9  OMRDD building, that is now being renovated for

         10  various groups.  Visiting Nurse Service, is taking

         11  over.  The whole building has been renovated.  This

         12  is right next door.  We were all on the same

         13  grounds.  We have heard many rumors about different

         14  groups.  There was even a mention of the stock

         15  market coming up there.  So, I'm not sure what the

         16  groups are but it is prime property and the powers

         17  to be would like to see maybe more money.  They feel

         18  it would be a money- making machine. They're not

         19  concerned about the human service aspect.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  How did you learn

         21  about the possible closing of the psychiatric unit

         22  in regard to your brother?  Who told you that this

         23  happening?  How did you learn about it?

         24                 MS. BARST:  I was approached by the

         25  staff to move him to other facilities.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then the only

          3  reason you knew about this is because the staff

          4  informed you that this was a possibility, that it is

          5  going to happen.

          6                 MS. BARST:  That's right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  You did not learn

          8  about this any other way and you didn't hear about

          9  this any other way that you could have been

         10  informed.  If the staff did not told you, you would

         11  have not known?

         12                 MS. BARST:  That's right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  You did not saw

         14  no leaflets distributed by the government --

         15                 MS. BARST:  Nothing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  -- To notify you

         17  that this was going to be a possibility and that

         18  your family will not have these services available

         19  to you?

         20                 MS. BARST:  Nothing, nothing.  I know

         21  back in 1998 they did place my brother in a nursing

         22  home and he was there for two years and, like I

         23  said, he had this incident and he came back to Bronx

         24  Psychiatric Center.  They didn't even tell me that

         25  Bronx Psychiatric Center would take him back, that
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          2  he was their patient.  When I approached Gracie

          3  Square where they took him after this other nursing

          4  home, they didn't know where they would place him.

          5  They said Brooklyn, Staten Island, New Jersey,

          6  wherever we get a bed.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Where you live?

          8  Don't tell me your specific address, just the area.

          9                 MS. BARST:  I live in Westchester.  I

         10  used to live in the Bronx.  I live four miles north

         11  of the Bronx.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  Then what

         13  you will have to do to visit your brother?  Describe

         14  it to me.  If he's moved to Pilgrim State?

         15                 MS. BARST:  Pilgrim State?  I don't

         16  know. I suppose I'd have to take the Long Island

         17  Railroad out there and spend whatever it is, three

         18  to five hours to get there. I have no idea where

         19  this is.  I know it's --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  It's not three or

         21  $4. It's more than that.

         22                 MS. LASK:  No, no, hours she said.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Hours.  It's

         24  okay.

         25                 MS. BARST:  I mean, I don't know.  I
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          2  know it's way out on Long Island.  I'd have to take

          3  the Long Island Railroad, and just for a 15- minute

          4  visit, 20- minute

          5   -- that's all I have, a very short visit.  I go

          6  twice a week.  He's my only relative.  It's concern.

          7    And I'm his only relative.  I feel that if he

          8  would have strange unfamiliar staff members he would

          9  be even more withdrawn.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The people who

         11  are at this moment located in the center, the

         12  children and the adults, do the families of those

         13  people live in the Bronx? Most likely than not?

         14                 MS. LASK:  Yes.

         15                 MS. BARST:  Yeah.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  The majority

         17  of them, yes, they do and that's what's most

         18  convenient, 'cause they can come three, four times,

         19  sometime even on their lunch break, if they can't do

         20  it after work.  So, it makes it very convenient to

         21  them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The families and

         23  the parents and all of the individuals who are

         24  affected directly by this, because the family

         25  members may be moved, do you know if they know
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          2  what's going on?

          3                 MS. LASK:  Oh, they know.  You have

          4  someone here who's ready to testify.  They have the

          5  parents and relatives ready to testify.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  Then I

          7  will not ask no more questions in that direction.

          8                 MR. BENSON:  The concept here really

          9  is that mental health therapy and mental health

         10  recovery is based on a supportive environment.  It's

         11  based on family interaction. It's based on the

         12  acceptance of your family regarding your mental

         13  deficit and acceptance and understanding.  When you

         14  remove the family, the individual only becomes

         15  isolated and instead of progressing they degenerate.

         16    So, what's stunning about this proposal is that it

         17  may be penny wise, but it's pound foolish because

         18  these individuals don't get better, they get worse

         19  when you move them away.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Do you have a

         21  count for the amount of childrens who are there who

         22  are with developmental disabilities?

         23                 MS. LASK:  There's a member of the

         24  Board of Visitors from Bronx Children's here who's

         25  going to testify.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.

          3                 MS. LASK:  He could probably give you

          4  that information.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I can find that.

          6  Okay.

          7                 My last question, do you know if the

          8  hospital put together or the psychiatric center in

          9  totality had put together, organized a reaching- out

         10  campaign to let the people know that this was

         11  happening?

         12                 MS. LASK:  I don't think the hospital

         13  itself, the administration, in all fairness, was

         14  aware until the morning the Governor spoke.  For one

         15  week there were all kinds of rumors in the rumor

         16  factory.  We heard about Middletown, we heard about

         17  Hutchings and maybe Elmira. Nothing, I don't think

         18  any of us expected the Bronx to be hit.  We have

         19  just spent a fortune of money rehabbing one

         20  building, and to spend that kind of money and now

         21  tell us that we're gonna close the center, I don't

         22   --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  It doesn't make

         24  sense.

         25                 MS. LASK:  -- Know where the thinking
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          2  goes.

          3  I really fathom what the Governor is thinking about.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I know for a

          6  fact, because the morning that it came out I was on

          7  the task force 'cause we were expecting some

          8  proposals for some closings. Everyone was shocked

          9  that Bronx Psychiatric and Bronx Children's were on

         10  the list because, first of all, we have more than a

         11  hundred patients so we have a good number of

         12  patients in there.  Everyone was surprised.  There

         13  was a capital project to rebuild certain parts of

         14  the hospital to make sure it's functional and that

         15  money was supposed to be -- started moving people

         16  out.  We had the construction crews in the middle

         17  getting everything prepared, so it was a surprise to

         18  everyone at the facility.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  I don't

         20  have no more questions for this panel, but I want to

         21  close with the following statement.  I don't know if

         22  you are aware that according to the federal

         23  government, the federal government has passed a

         24  mandate to the State and the State has passed them

         25  onto the City.  The mandate is about cultural
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          2  competent care.  On that mandate of cultural

          3  competent care the two units that the Governor is

          4  planning to close, which is the only two units in

          5  the state that has Spanish- speaking personnel for

          6  that particular population, is violating the

          7  cultural competent care from the federal government,

          8  from the state government to the city and the City

          9  that sent that mandate to private organizations that

         10  serve this population. Therefore, I wonder, when the

         11  Governor mandate policy, what he mean by it.  It

         12  sounds to me that he mandate the policy for those

         13  who have to implement it but it's a joke for him.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 (Applause)

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Our next

         17  witnesses are Mr. Daniel Porro,  Miss June

         18  Rodriques, Miss Paulina Magnetti, Miss Diana

         19  Silverman, Miss Ginny Gelben (sic).

         20                 Please raise your right hand.  Do you

         21  swear that the testimony you're about to provide

         22  before this committee is the whole truth and you

         23  will answer Council member questions truthfully?

         24                 MR. PORRO:  I do.

         25                 MS. RODRIGUES:  I do.
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          2                 MS. MAGNETTI:  I do.

          3                 MS. SILVERMAN:  I do.

          4                 MS. GERBINO- ROSEN:  I do.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Okay.  We'll

          6  start on my right, on your left, with Mr. Porro.

          7  Please state your name and organization for the

          8  record and begin your testimony.

          9                 MR. PORRO:  Thank you for inviting

         10  me.  It's an honor to be here.  My name is Daniel

         11  Porro.  I am a resident of the Bronx.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Please speak

         13  up.

         14                 MR. PORRO:  My name is Daniel Porro.

         15  I am a resident of the Bronx.  I am a person with a

         16  disability.  I am the National Action Network

         17  Disabled Committee vice president.  Also, the co-

         18  Chair for the Bronx Mental Health Consumer

         19  Committee.  The Chair is here as well.

         20                 I went to Children's Bronx

         21  Psychiatric Center 30 years ago in 1973 and in 1974.

         22                 I'm very upset because I advocate for

         23  people with disability all my life.  I am dyslexic

         24  so I don't have something prepared for you.

         25                 But the impact that the rumors
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          2  created already in this, within the mental health

          3  consumers, is upsetting to many consumers.  They're

          4  calling.  They're reaching out.  They don't know

          5  what to do.  Our voices are not being heard.  Our

          6  programs are being cut as we speak. The services

          7  that we get every single day are being less and

          8  less.

          9                 My consumers are adults but it

         10  reflects as well as the children. Here I am, 30

         11  years later, and talking about a program that I

         12  needed to be functionable.

         13                 You can't take this program away from

         14  the Bronx because there are other people from other

         15  communities and other boroughs, as well as upstate,

         16  as it was said before, that have members or

         17  relatives of somebody that has been to Bronx State

         18  or the Doors.  There is a Beacon I and Beacon II.

         19  They already started to move these people out. Okay.

         20    These consumers have called me and they've told

         21  me, "Advocate, call somebody, get on somebody's

         22  case."  The complaints are coming in basically to

         23  the committees, the consumers and things that are

         24  organized.

         25                 You know, it's unfair the way that
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          2  this is taking place without us not having anybody

          3  to look up to, to step up for us.  You know, I think

          4  that there should be some sort of policy, every time

          5  you take money away from the consumers there should

          6  be a penalty.  You people should get paid that.  I'm

          7  not trying to be disrespectful, but that's how I

          8  feel.  You're taking something from me.

          9                 I have a twin set of nieces, one of

         10  them is dyslexic.  They need help.  They can't get

         11  help.  It's very hard to handle children today in

         12  this city.

         13                 I'm trying to reach out to you

         14  because this is a concern that I feel that you must

         15  do everything possible.  The events are taking place

         16  since the war enhanced a lot of people with mental

         17  illness and they're being decompensating.

         18                 You know, there are more people out

         19  there that need help that are not being heard.

         20  There are more people out there in the streets that

         21  are not being heard. There are people in my

         22  community, that I see, that are not in the programs

         23  that they were in.  They have been discharged.  They

         24  can't go back.  They don't get recommendations to go

         25  to other programs.
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          2                 There is something happening already

          3  in the Bronx that I see.  I am your eyes and ears.

          4  I am the ones that get the calls.  When I go home

          5  and I look at my machine and I see 20 calls, 30

          6  calls, and I hear these people complaining that

          7  their social workers couldn't help them in getting

          8  information and things of that nature, food stamps,

          9  Medicare.  These are people in the programs around

         10  that area.  So what's going on here?  There's more

         11  going on than meets the eye.

         12                 You know, I have reached out to my

         13  local politicians and nobody's getting back to me.

         14  You know, I don't see you reaching out to us, we're

         15  reaching out and we're not being taken seriously.

         16  Let's get ourselves organized.  We are the

         17  recipients of everything that passes through your

         18  hands, whether it goes through or not, whether

         19  you're agreeing, but we're still the ones that have

         20  low income families -- low income.  We are the ones

         21  who have to put up and advocate for the programs

         22  that we're in.

         23                 There is a big impact already in the

         24  rumors and I wanted to mention that.  As per the

         25  Councilman Reverend Johnson, he had mentioned to the
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          2  families a question.  Reverend Robert Johnson --

          3  Jackson.  I am dyslexic and so I wanted --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Don't worry about

          5  it.

          6                 MR. PORRO:  -- To ask him a question.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Don't worry about

          8  it.  I have a problem in my English capacity and I

          9  don't get concern about it.  Don't worry about it.

         10                 MR. PORRO:  Thank you for

         11  understanding.

         12                 My answer to him is also no.  If

         13  there's any way that I can say aye to the proposal

         14  that was passed. Please let the consumers be heard

         15  as we want to say aye as well with you.  Thank you.

         16                 I'll be happy to answer any

         17  questions, even the questions that Dr. Lloyd Sederer

         18  couldn't answer, I'll be happy to answer because

         19  what goes through his desk eventually will affect my

         20  consumers.  Thank you for your time.

         21                 (Applause)

         22                 MS. RODRIQUES:  My name is June

         23  Rodrigues.  I have a sister at Bronx Psychiatric

         24  Hospital.  She's been a patient there for over ten

         25  years.  I became my sister's guardian in December
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          2  2000 when my mom died.  As I say, it was not one

          3  that I willingly assumed.  I resented my sister at

          4  first because of the problems we had with her

          5  because of her illness, but now I've come to learn

          6  that I love my sister dearly and I am here to

          7  protect her because she's being torn from her home.

          8  This is not a hospital to these patients, it's their

          9  home.  What is happening is a lot of them, the

         10  patients I've spoken to, because I'm also a

         11  volunteer in the Parents and Relatives Association

         12  of the Bronx Provider Consumer Alliance Resource

         13  Center which Miss Paulina Magnetti is the President

         14  and Director of.

         15                 In my statement I say I understand

         16  just a little about budgets and I know in all

         17  budgets changes can be made.  We can look at them

         18  and see where things will affect people.  It can be

         19  changed.  Nothing is written in stone.

         20                 The closing of the -- the Bronx

         21  County needs the Bronx Psychiatric Hospital.  There

         22  are hundreds and thousands of people who visit these

         23  patients.  I see them there when I go.  I go there

         24  three, four days a week and I see the families

         25  coming in struggling from the buses, bringing
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          2  goodies for their families.  Sometimes I will watch

          3  a parent leave the bus stop, which was closer to the

          4  buildings, and walk struggling because the families

          5  are elderly.  The majority of family members are

          6  elderly people there.  It will take them, even from

          7  the gate to the building, maybe 20 minutes walking

          8  with a shopping cart. This is in the winter, this is

          9  on a day like today.  It bothers me that someone can

         10  arbitrarily, with a stroke of a pen, say to these

         11  people, "We don't care about you.  We want -- money

         12  is what's important to us."

         13                 Now, you have to travel on a train to

         14  Grand Central Port Authority, struggle in that maze

         15  to find the Long Island Railroad, get on a train for

         16  two hours or more, to wherever the stop is for

         17  Pilgrim State, then make sure you catch a bus from

         18  there to a facility.  After four or five hours of

         19  traveling on the train, whatever food I bring for my

         20  family member or they bring for theirs will be cold.

         21  Where do we go to heat this food up?

         22                 I am of West Indian background.  When

         23  I go to visit my sister and she says to me, "I need

         24  a beef patty," I can get angry, jump on a bus and go

         25  to the Westchester Square to the West Indian
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          2  restaurant and buy her something. When I get to

          3  Pilgrim State, what do I do?  I'm sorry, I can't do

          4  that.  I myself am disabled.  I am an amputee, so I

          5  would not necessarily take food from here to Pilgrim

          6  State because it becomes a heavy burden after

          7  walking a while.  I would have nothing for my

          8  sister.

          9                 It is a devastating impact on the

         10  entire New York City, not just the Bronx, because

         11  you have family members in the Bronx, in Brooklyn,

         12  in Queens, Manhattan that take -- their family

         13  members are in the Bronx.  Yes, you're gonna say

         14  from Brooklyn you can jump on the Long Island Rail

         15  at Atlantic Avenue, but it takes money to get there.

         16    $1.50, $2.00 to take to the Bronx is enough.  When

         17  I get on a train now to go to Long Island, that's

         18  maybe $15.  I will miss my bus because I am not the

         19  walk fast.  I would have to rely on schedules.  It's

         20  unfair.

         21                 As I said, I'm here to support my

         22  sister.  I do not think the patients will

         23  decompensate because they will not see their family

         24  members anymore.  My sister, Beulah, has become a

         25  celebrity in the hospital because I am there three,
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          2  four times a week.  Everyone knows June. "Oh, you're

          3  Beulah's sister."  My sister tells them, "Listen,

          4  you do the best for me because my sister, June, is

          5  coming."  She has gained such esteem, self- esteem.

          6  That will be taken away from her.  It's devastating.

          7    Words cannot explain the impact that this will

          8  have on the family members and the patients.

          9                 I ask you, and I thank you for

         10  Resolution 771.  As Mr. Porro said, if I can say

         11  aye, I say aye to it, also.  Thank you.

         12                 (Applause)

         13                 MS. MAGNETTI:  My name is Paulina

         14  Magnetti. I am now head of the Parents and Relatives

         15  Association at Bronx Psychiatric Center and I also

         16  have a non- profit organization called The Bronx

         17  Provider Consumer Alliance Resource Center,

         18  Incorporated.  I establish programs for the clients.

         19    I have several enterprises going on at Bronx

         20  Psychiatric Center that are training programs in

         21  retail and in vending.  I also have a mica training

         22  program for the patients.  I have programs in the

         23  evening and weekends when there's just no services

         24  in any hospital.

         25                 I'm very involved in Bronx State
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          2  because I'm a parent.  I know what it's like to have

          3  a child that nobody wants.  To have a child with

          4  such behaviors that the only thing that was ever

          5  offered to me was Willowbrook, which was unthinkable

          6  at that time.

          7                 My son is now 42 years old and.  When

          8  he started he was autistic with severe behavioral

          9  problems and he has catastrophic behaviors as well.

         10  It's been a long haul and only this year -- I thank

         11  God for him.  He's a blessing.  His behaviors

         12  somehow have been modified.  He has a job in a

         13  sheltered workshop.  He's the biggest producer of

         14  five- point part pens in the Institutes of Applied

         15  Human Dynamics.  I'm so proud of him.  He just came

         16  back from his first vacation, which is at

         17  Rockinghorse Ranch, and he rode a horse up and down

         18  the trails.  I am elated.  It took 40 -- what did I

         19  say -- forty- three years for him to change.  I've

         20  been fighting all along.

         21                 I'm now going to read what I wrote

         22  here because otherwise I'll get too involved with my

         23  personal history.

         24                 Historically, there has always been a

         25  major gap in children's inpatient services.  Bronx
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          2  Children's Psychiatric Center is the borough's sole

          3  provider of children's inpatient services.

          4  Currently it is at capacity with a six- week waiting

          5  list.  What happens to children and families in

          6  crisis if this center closes?

          7                 We know that early intervention and

          8  ongoing care is key to recovery and helps to ease

          9  the agony parents and family members endure when a

         10  child is emotionally disturbed.  Parents need to be

         11  near their children, to love, nurture and provide

         12  support and become true partners in treatment along

         13  with the clinical staff.

         14                 Bronx Children's Psychiatric Center

         15  has comprehensive treatment services which include

         16  the community, day treatment for schools, mica

         17  programs, family education, et cetera, with a

         18  clinical staff inhouse.  We have come a long way in

         19  educating the general public to accept mental

         20  illness as treatable, and we are on the threshold of

         21  breaking the stigma associated with mental illness.

         22  Don't forget, one in four people in the community

         23  has an emotional problem.  Now, we are turning the

         24  clock backwards to a time when a mentally ill person

         25  or child was sent away.  That was the only thing
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          2  that was offered to me when my son, who was four

          3  years old, decompensated to a point where he was

          4  unmanageable, totally unmanageable, and my family

          5  became the caretakers.  My three older daughters, my

          6  husband, myself, we didn't sleep at night.  We

          7  always had someone watching him because he was self-

          8  abusive.

          9                 The person that was sent away in

         10  those days was never spoken of and family members

         11  would visit them infrequently, if at all.  If a

         12  parent could not bear to have a child sent away,

         13  that person would be kept at home.  I believe the

         14  expression is "in the closet."

         15                 Out of necessity I am a parent who

         16  has acted in several capacities, as an advocate as

         17  well as a provider of services.  At one time there

         18  were no services for severely emotionally disturbed

         19  children with catastrophic behaviors.  The only

         20  option offered was Willowbrook.  This was

         21  unthinkable.  There were no services, so we helped

         22  create a system.  I became one of the founding

         23  parents of the Institutes of Applied Human Dynamics

         24  and even that did not serve my needs at the time

         25  because our school closed at 2:00 and my son needed
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          2  24- hour care.  He still does.  This set me on the

          3  path as a provider of services for others.

          4                 Parents have been told that mental

          5  health care would be held in their geographic areas.

          6    When was that policy redefined for the Bronx?  The

          7  Bronx will be the only borough in New York without

          8  its own intermediate care facility for --

          9                 (Applause)

         10                 MS. MAGNETTI:  -- Adults and

         11  children.  For the adult psychiatric population --

         12  the patient, families will be unable to travel to

         13  Exit 53 on the Long Island Expressway.

         14                 (Applause)

         15                 MS. MAGNETTI:  Many of our parents

         16  are immigrants, do not speak English and do not have

         17  the funds to make three- hour trips by railroad more

         18  than twice a year, if that much.  Families will be

         19  ripped apart at the seams. Patients will feel

         20  abandoned and may not wish to be so far away from

         21  family support.

         22                 In the Bronx, the impact on support

         23  services will be traumatic for all concerned.  Our

         24  clinics, outpatient centers, adult homes, shelters,

         25  SROs are all overcrowded, underfunded and
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          2  inadequate.  Housing has not kept up with the

          3  downsizing as promised.  Closing Bronx Psychiatric

          4  Center will force more people on the streets,

          5  unmedicated, decompensated, uncared for to perhaps

          6  end up in a jail or a morgue.

          7                 1.3 million people live in the Bronx,

          8  83% of which are minorities.  The Bronx has the

          9  highest unemployment rate in the city.  If the Bronx

         10  were not part of New York City it would be the

         11  seventh largest municipality in New York State.  How

         12  could the seventh largest municipality exist

         13  without, or be denied, an intermediate psychiatric

         14  facility?  Both children and adult facilities are

         15  currently filled to capacity at 100% despite what

         16  New York State says about underutilization.

         17                 The Bronx Psychiatric Center adult

         18  facility houses a transitional living residence,

         19  it's called a TLR, with 126 psychiatric adult

         20  clients who, without this facility, would reside

         21  inpatient.  That's one way of downsizing.  These

         22  people are homeless, making the census 50% over

         23  capacity.  As I said before, this is our homeless

         24  population on the grounds of Bronx Psychiatric

         25  Center.
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          2                 Bronx Psychiatric Center is the only

          3  hospital with monolingual wards and staff.  This

          4  past winter with its many below- freezing

          5  temperatures, our municipal hospitals sheltered the

          6  homeless population many nights.  The downsizing has

          7  created a ripple effect of hopelessness

          8  unprecedented to this date.  If the hospitals close,

          9  the number will swell and impact our communities.

         10  Former patients who are homeless sleep on Woods

         11  Island because there aren't enough facilities here

         12  in the Bronx or the city and travel daily to their

         13  former neighborhoods to hang out on the streets to

         14  beg.  People familiar to them supply them with spare

         15  change, handouts and clothing.

         16                 For the above- stated reasons, I

         17  hereby support Resolution 771 condemning the

         18  Governor's budget proposal to terminate services at

         19  Bronx Psychiatric Center and three other adult

         20  psychiatric centers that serve children and adults

         21  with serious and persistent mental disabilities in

         22  the City and State of New York.

         23                 Thank you for letting me speak.

         24                 (Applause)

         25                 MS. SILVERMAN:  I'm Diana Silverman
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          2  and I'm the Chair of the Bronx Mental Health

          3  Consumer Committee and co- Chair of the Mental

          4  Health Council in the Bronx.

          5                 On March 25th the Consumer Committee

          6  passed its own resolution against the closing of

          7  Bronx Psychiatric Center and Bronx Children's

          8  Psychiatric Center.  I'm not going to read directly

          9  from my testimony because a lot of it -- some of it

         10  has been said, but there are some key points I don't

         11  think have been touched on.

         12                 One, some have been by the gentleman

         13  from PEF.  I've been doing mental health and health

         14  policy, Medicaid policy for about ten years,

         15  including working with unions.  I feel that I must

         16  say this in fairness to myself, that we are always

         17  closing the barn door after the cow has run out in

         18  mental health and health and Medicaid policy.  I

         19  have watched for ten years, as both a member of the

         20  Medicaid Managed Care Task Force and other venues,

         21  the degeneration of services and coverage for people

         22  in the City and State, let alone federally.  I'm

         23  here today, almost against my will, because I'm

         24  really quite tired for coming to these meetings when

         25  the handwriting has been on the wall concerning
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          2  privatization.  I worked on privatization issues in

          3  relationship to unions ten years ago and here I am

          4  sitting today talking about the same stuff.  I mean,

          5  it gets redundant.

          6                 Medicaid is being cut.  Issues in

          7  relationship to this cause that have not been

          8  brought up, A, is consumers have no voice, neither

          9  the family or friends. It's been alluded to but,

         10  quite frankly, in terms of what should be a civil

         11  society, where we are supposedly making progress

         12  through reinvestment dollars and community- based

         13  services, through Ticket to Work, that consumers are

         14  supposed to be human beings.  And what I see in this

         15  cause is consumers and survivors of the mental

         16  health system are not human beings, they're units of

         17  cost.

         18                 You know, it reminds me of Oscar

         19  Wilde when I took Economics 1.  In Samuelson there

         20  was a line at the top. Oscar Wilde said that the

         21  definition of a cynic is someone who knows the price

         22  of everything and the value of nothing.

         23                 That's sort of where I feel we're at.

         24    We're in the 21st century and in civil society

         25  people have rights.  Your three sets of rights that
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          2  have been lost here:  The family, friends and

          3  advocates, who I put together, the survivors,

          4  literally, of the mental health system or consumers

          5  and children and adolescents, who have no rights,

          6  who have seen diminishment of rights for children

          7  and adolescents in the mental health system over the

          8  years.  In this whole scenario none have been

          9  consulted.  There was no meetings.  There was

         10  nothing.  They just feel like objects of dollars and

         11  cents rationalization done by the -- by whatever

         12  government happens to be in power.

         13                 As the gentleman said earlier, it

         14  isn't just Pataki, this has been going on through

         15  administration through administration.  And because

         16  there is no empowerment and organization within the

         17  consumer survivor community, with all due respect,

         18  they are at the bottom of the barrel. If I want to

         19  cut something, let me cut you.

         20                 I do believe, though, there are

         21  certain things that are being used to rationalize

         22  what's happening and I think it's very important to

         23  put it out there.  There will be an increase of ACT

         24  teams (phonetic) in the Bronx. The State is going to

         25   -- ACT is very much tied to AOT, Assisted
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          2  Outpatient Treatment.  Many people and survivors in

          3  the community feel that that is a total abolishment

          4  of the civil rights of mentally ill, so- called

          5  mentally ill people.

          6                 So, what they're doing is they say --

          7  if you read an ACT agreement, it says this is less

          8  restrictive treatment.  In other words, I won't put

          9  you in a state institution.  If you have a certain

         10  number of hospitalizations, acute patient care, they

         11  AOT you.  That's a way around institutionalization

         12  in a long- term facility. I could say there are a

         13  lot of problems with assisted outpatient treatment

         14  because I'm dealing with several instances of that

         15  right now  Advocates went out there and they said,

         16   "We want less restrictive.  We don't want

         17  institutionalization.  We don't want long- term

         18  treatment.  We want reinvestment dollars."  Because

         19  when you close the hospital, ostensibly, it goes

         20  into reinvestment, you know, into the community

         21  base.  So we have triaging of money.

         22                 Well, to the stock of advocates who

         23  were in, many of whom are provider advocates, we

         24  give you X dollars out of the pocket of long- term

         25  care and to the other advocates who said we wanted
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          2  less restrictive treatment, well, now you have AOT,

          3  and it will say in the order less restrictive

          4  treatment.

          5                 In other words, you're not in a

          6  hospital, you're not in a long- term care or acute

          7  patient care facility.  So the guys or people who

          8  actually need long- term care, even though I'm not a

          9  great believer in what goes on in our medical health

         10  system, there are people who really need some care.

         11  They really can't be helped in acute care, they

         12  can't be AOT'd.  I have someone now sitting in a

         13  hospital 'cause AOT totally failed them.  I have

         14  another person who doesn't even know where their AOT

         15  is taking them. They're up in Rockland County,

         16  they're in Bellevue Hospital, they're in Beth

         17  Israel.  This is AOT. Believe me, the

         18  rationalization when you're increasing ACT teams in

         19  the Bronx you're gonna AOT more people.  It's

         20  probably what's going to happen.

         21                 Then there's the other thing going

         22  on, which is the Medicaiding of all the services,

         23  which no one seems to know about called PROS,

         24  Personalized Recovery Oriented Services, which will

         25   -- when people now come out of some of the
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          2  hospitals they go into COPS, Comprehensive

          3  Outpatient whatever it is, but it's all changing.

          4  Nobody from the State is saying anything because

          5  they don't want to say anything.  They don't want to

          6  see how the institutionali zation of PROS,

          7  increasing ACT teams and the AOTing of people is

          8  going to influence the institutionalization, let

          9  alone in the Bronx, but just about anywhere else

         10  where they want to close facilities.

         11                 I think it's very important to take a

         12  good look at the policies lying behind all of this.

         13  I understand it's complicated and puts people to

         14  sleep, but if I see someone who's on AOT with

         15  totally disorganized services -- one of them just

         16  landed back in the hospital -- then we have to

         17  question exactly what's going on here because I

         18  guarantee you, people -- you're gonna see in the

         19  Bronx an increase in AOT because those ACT teams

         20  means there's going to be an increase in AOT.  This

         21  is the bottom line here.

         22                 It's not that there isn't a policy,

         23  it's a policy nobody wants to talk -- it's a policy

         24  by default. It's a policy by what's convenient, and

         25  the bottom line from the consumer survivor point of
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          2  view and the family point of view, and the consumers

          3  and their families and advocates don't all agree

          4  with each other, but they do sort of form a camp, is

          5  they don't count.  They are meaningless in this

          6  whole discussion.

          7                 I can say that because I know from

          8  meetings I've gone to around some of these changes,

          9  when it came to putting PROS in, consumers weren't

         10  really a part of that discussion, even though some

         11  of their services are going to be Medicaided and

         12  totally changed.  If you talk about Bronx State and

         13  Bronx Children's, who cares if the parents and the

         14  patients have no rights.  Because that's the way

         15  it's been and that's what we've regressed back to,

         16  if we really ever got out of it in the first

         17  instance.

         18                 So, I think that it's very important

         19  that people sitting here, who have long- term

         20  stakeholders, better think of some way to work

         21  together because I can guarantee, over the ten years

         22  I've worked on health and Medicaid policy, it's

         23  always been worse and worse, not better and better,

         24  and it's because consumers and survivors don't talk

         25  to providers, providers go along to get along and
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          2  everybody is happy.

          3                 For me to sit here today on the

          4  closing of these hospitals when everyone knew

          5  privatization of Medicaid and hospitals and all this

          6  stuff has been in the wind for years, is pathetic.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

          8                 MS. SILVERMAN:  I feel pathetic.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.  Yes,

         10  Doctor.

         11                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  My name is Ginny

         12  Gerbino Rosen.  I'm a doctor, a psychiatrist at

         13  Bronx Children's Psychiatric Center and I come here

         14  today not only as a member of the Public Employees

         15  Federation but also a provider of care for children

         16  and adolescents in the Bronx and through OMH.

         17                 I also want to commend you for your

         18  efforts here today and I want to wholeheartedly

         19  support your resolution.

         20                 I wanted to read into the record a

         21  statement from somebody who works in one of these

         22  facilities and perhaps answer some of your questions

         23  that you've had this afternoon.

         24                 Bronx Children's Psychiatric Center

         25  was opened in 1969 as part of a progressive movement
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          2  in OMH to separate psychiatrically hospitalized

          3  children and adolescents from adults and to bring

          4  these mentally ill children back to their

          5  communities.

          6                 Over the last three decades our

          7  hospital has made a concerted effort to adapt to the

          8  changing needs and resources of its community in the

          9  Bronx.  Whether it has been long- term treatment or

         10  acute inpatient services to emergency rooms and

         11  juvenile justice, Bronx Children's has struggled to

         12  maintain a high quality of care to our population in

         13  the Bronx in the tradition of public service and

         14  commitment to fragile youngsters and their families

         15  stressed by mental illness, trauma and tenuous

         16  access to care.

         17                 We have also trained many child

         18  psychiatrists throughout our existence and many of

         19  these skilled physicians have remained in the Bronx

         20  to continue this legacy of public service so central

         21  to our professional goals.  At the present time

         22  Bronx Children's services 78 to 80 inpatient

         23  children and adolescents in need of longer- term

         24  inpatient hospitalization and stabilization.  Our

         25  clients all have histories of multiple shorter- term
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          2  hospitalizations in other facilities, upward of

          3  five, some as many as 12, which had failed to

          4  stabilize their psychiatric symptoms sufficiently to

          5  permit return to their communities and resumption of

          6  their developmental progress.

          7                 Their psychiatric illnesses have

          8  proven resistant, not only because they have not

          9  responded to a number of traditional treatments, but

         10  also because stabilization is complicated by other

         11  factors:  Histories of abuse and deprivation,

         12  presence of ongoing substance use and the frequent

         13  co- existence of various medical conditions,

         14  themselves poorly treated and/or potentially life

         15  threatening.  The unstable psychiatric illness

         16  renders these young people more vulnerable to

         17  escalating dangers to life itself.  Without

         18  treatment that is effective, these young people

         19  literally lose their future to substance abuse, life

         20  threatening medical illness including asthma,

         21  diabetes, epilepsy, HIV and/or the violence of the

         22  streets.  Their families, struggling themselves with

         23  medical and economic stress, bear witness to their

         24  children's tragedy and the loss of future

         25  generations for whom hope is only possible if access
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          2  to care is continued.  We have been able to

          3  stabilize psychiatric conditions so long out of

          4  control that hope itself was nearly gone and

          5  criminal justice was beginning to surface as the

          6  almost inevitable future disposition.

          7                 Bronx Children's has viewed itself as

          8  uniquely suited and fortuitously positioned to halt

          9  the developmental slide into chaos, criminality or

         10  death.  We have been available to our community as a

         11  resource when all else fails.  We were not an alien

         12  and distant facility, remote and disinterested.  We

         13  live and struggle where our children and families

         14  live and struggle.  Without Bronx Children's the

         15  children would be disbursed to distant hospitals,

         16  virtually inaccessible to their families.

         17                 To take our facility away is just

         18  another example to our families that their

         19  desperation and isolation has no meaning in a

         20  culture where economic priorities are distorted and

         21  cruel and human suffering does not matter if it

         22  happens where and when no one is looking.  The

         23  closing of our state hospitals in the Bronx may seem

         24  easy to do while everyone is distracted by other

         25  more high- profile concerns,
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          2  but there is nothing easy about the collapse of

          3  mental health care in a major community.  When our

          4  children with these needs are ignored, the violence

          5  and despair will grow and it will be seen and heard

          6  in ways more costly and tragic.

          7                 (Applause)

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

          9                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  You have any

         10  questions?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay. I do have

         12  plenty.

         13                 Currently, I need to know if you know

         14  the exact numbers of people in the facility.

         15                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  We have a

         16  present census that runs between 75 and 78 and we're

         17  always running a waiting list for children on

         18  referral.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  That 75 is the

         20  capacity?

         21                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  No, we have a

         22  capacity up to 78.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Oh, 78.

         24                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  What makes the

         25  difference is what -- our units are arranged
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          2  according to age.  So, we have a child unit that

          3  goes from about five to eight and a half.  Then we

          4  have a preteen unit that goes from eight and a half

          5  or nine years old to about 11 1/2 or 12.  Then we

          6  have another young adolescent unit that goes from

          7  about 12 to 15 and then my unit, which is 15 to 18.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then in reality,

          9  capacity is not fulfilling the needs.  You have 78

         10  capacity but the need is bigger than that?

         11                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  Oh, the need is

         12  always bigger.  We have a waiting list all the time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And that waiting

         14  list is how much?

         15                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  Well, it varies.

         16    It can be anywhere from three patients to five or

         17  six, depending on where they are.  It just varies.

         18  But we always have a waiting list.  There is always

         19  a waiting list in shorter term hospitals.  We

         20  service private hospitals that have acute patients

         21  and we service City Health and Hospital Corporation

         22  facilities as well.  So, there's always a waiting

         23  list.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then the children

         25  that we're talking about that are in these
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          2  particular units, can range from what age to --

          3                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  Five up to 18.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No more than 18?

          5                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  Well, sometimes

          6  we'll keep them longer if it's a disposition issue,

          7  but no, not over the age of 18.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And where they

          9  get discharged when they are ready?  Back to their

         10  parents?

         11                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  Well, very often

         12  they do. I think that we have been able to treat

         13  them in ways other facilities do not, and sometimes

         14  we have gotten youngsters back to their families,

         15  who have been separated from their families for a

         16  long time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And the ones that

         18  are 18, can they be discharged to community- based

         19  organizations --

         20                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  Oh, yes,

         21  absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  -- That form

         23  programs and housing?

         24                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  Right.

         25  Absolutely they can.  On occasion, much more rarely
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          2  than in the past, they sometimes go on to the adult

          3  facility.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.

          5                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  But that's much

          6  more rarer than it used to be.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  To the consumers

          8  and to the parents or family members, does the

          9  State, to the best of your knowledge, send letters

         10  to the families that have family members in there to

         11  notify them that this is happening, call for a

         12  meeting, distribute a leaflet notifying of this

         13  closing?  What else -- that the social workers in

         14  charge of the clients in question were ordered to

         15  reach out to any one of you to let you know that

         16  this is happening?

         17                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  Well, as a

         18  family member --

         19                 MS. MAGNETTI:  There was a major

         20  meeting of people in the hospital where it was

         21  disclosed to us that Bronx State was on the block.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  That major

         23  meeting, can you explain to me what it was about?

         24  It was a major meeting of what?

         25                 MS. MAGNETTI:  Of people in the
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          2  facility, people who worked in the facility.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then these --

          4                 MS. MAGNETTI:  Directors of services,

          5  social workers and people in the community.  I'm

          6  included because I have the parent group and I have

          7  this --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But it's not a

          9  meeting -- what I'm trying to distinguish is that

         10  that meeting happened because they learned that this

         11  is going to happen and then they have to have a

         12  meeting because this is going to happen.

         13  It's not a meeting to explore the possibilities --

         14                 MS. MAGNETTI:  No.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  -- That this may

         16  happen.

         17                 MS. MAGNETTI:  No. No, it was a fait

         18  accompli as far as I was concerned.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  It's a fire, your

         20  house is on fire and you better put the fire out

         21  because you burning.  Something like that.

         22                 MS. MAGNETTI:  What I did is I

         23  contacted the families, immediately sent them flyers

         24  and notices. However, on the wards I believe the

         25  Social Security workers called the parents and told
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          2  them that this facility will be closing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Do you know if

          4  that was a good gesture from the workers or do you

          5  know if this was a directive that they got --

          6                 MS. MAGNETTI:  It was probably a

          7  directive. It was probably a directive.  But it was

          8  already something that they had planned and we had

          9  no input into it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  How about you?

         11                 MS. RODRIQUES:  Well, as a family

         12  member I was not notified.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  At all?

         14                 MS. RODRIQUES:  Not at all.  I'm a

         15  volunteer in the Resource Center, the Bronx

         16  provider, Paulina's group, and I heard about it

         17  because a phone call came in saying they were having

         18  a meeting, I believe it was February 5th and I said,

         19   "What meeting?"  They said, "The closing of the

         20  hospital."  Hardly anyone showed up.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  You said

         22  that you visited your sister, how many times a week?

         23                 MS. RODRIQUES:  At least three.

         24  Three, four times.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  If you visit your
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          2  sister at least three times a week, you would be one

          3  of those people who will know this information, it

          4  is happening, right?

          5                 MS. RODRIQUES:  We should have been

          6  told.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  How about

          8  the consumers?

          9                 MS. SILVERMAN:  The consumers were

         10  told.

         11                 MR. PORRO:  Well, no, I actually

         12  found out about the closing of the hospitals from

         13  somebody who works for the city.

         14                 MS. RODRIQUES:  But you're not --

         15                 MR. PORRO:  No, no, but we are the

         16  Consumer Committee in the Bronx and we were not even

         17  notified to have any role or any discussion or

         18  anything involved in what was going on around this

         19  facility.  I will say this is probably not the only

         20  facility at risk in the city, these two.  'Cause I'm

         21  involved with other boroughs and I think this is

         22  just the beginning of what they're planning.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  I asked

         24  the question --

         25                 MS. MAGNETTI:  The patients were told
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          2  on their wards.  They had a meeting, yes.

          3                 MR. PORRO:  I live in that area and I

          4  am part of the Bronx Mental Health Consumer

          5  Committee.  I wear several hats.  I got the

          6  information also from another person who called me.

          7  I didn't get it through the network of mental

          8  health.  I didn't get it through the chain of

          9  command or through the committee notice.

         10                 I visit at times consumers at

         11  different programs and I look at the bulletin board.

         12    For the most part it's the same thing that I saw

         13  last month still up there.  So, the information,

         14  whether they -- most likely we are not getting it.

         15  It's not being posted.  It's not being shown to the

         16  consumers.  The consumers don't know what's going

         17  on.

         18                 We have a mailing list and, for the

         19  most part, they are so discouraged of going to the

         20  meetings and saying nothing that, what me and Diana

         21  do, is volunteer. We're the ones holding up the

         22  fort.  We're the ones on top of this and we have no

         23  cooperation, even with the contacts that we have at

         24  the Health Department, at the Mental Health

         25  Department.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  This is

          3  interesting.  I ask the question because the Mental

          4  Health Department at the state level and at the city

          5  level have passed policies and put policies in

          6  place, internal notification, because the treatment

          7  modality that is needed to stabilize people include

          8  proper notification when the therapist is leaving.

          9  You cannot just say to somebody who's receiving

         10  treatment, "Hello, how are you?  Today's our last

         11  session.  Goodbye. It's fascinating for me to see

         12  how the State and the City Department of Mental

         13  Health require this regulations and modalities of

         14  treatment before then to close the psychiatric

         15  institution.  They don't have to have no modality in

         16  treatment.  They don't have to have no regulation in

         17  place. It's fascinating to me to see this, although

         18  they are violating their own mandates in this

         19  process, by the way. That's what they doing here.

         20  For sure.  I am my own gatekeeper and if I am my own

         21  gatekeeper, I can do whatever the hell I want to.  I

         22  guess that's the mentality here.

         23                 MS. MAGNETTI:  I would like to add

         24  something here that hasn't also been discussed, and

         25  I'm not sure some of the agencies involved really
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          2  see.  Bronx Psychiatric Center feeds other agencies

          3  in the Bronx, FEGS, and there are programs that get

          4  fed by this institution. Nobody has talked about --

          5  I'm not even sure the people in these other

          6  facilities that'll get their people for their

          7  programs from Bronx Psychiatric, what the dollar

          8  impact in other programs in the Bronx is going to be

          9  if you cut out this hospital.

         10                 I'm a grant writer and I know that

         11  you have to meet outcomes, but you also have to have

         12  bodies.  If you're talking people out of borough,

         13  those bodies that would go to in- borough programs

         14  are going to go down.  We'd also have --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Clarify this for

         16  me because what you're talking about is the

         17  inpatient people will be discharged to different

         18  institutions.

         19                 MS. MAGNETTI:  What happens is at

         20  Bronx -- there's a new theory that floats around,

         21  quote "single point of entry."  It doesn't mean

         22  exactly, but say I see Bronx Psychiatric as an

         23  aspect of single point of entry. The patient comes

         24  in acute.  They treat.  They do some rehabilitation

         25  at the hospital and they try to work to a discharge
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          2  planning, however long that takes.  For some people

          3  it really may be six months.  They discharge to

          4  programs in the community, whether it's FEGS or some

          5  of the other -- Beacon of Hope, or some of the other

          6  programs for people coming out of the hospital.

          7  They're a feeder to other programs.  If those

          8  programs are losing bodies, I hope they've been

          9  thinking about the fact they're also gonna lose

         10  money.  What you're also going to end up with is

         11  fragmentation of services, defeating the very theory

         12  of single point of entry, continuing of care.

         13  You're totally losing that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.

         15                 MR. PORRO:  Because the guy's gonna

         16  be out in Pilgrim State or Creedmore.  He might as

         17  well be in Antarctica.

         18                 MS. MAGNETTI:  The issue we do have

         19  in most of the hospitals is the recidivism.  So if a

         20  person's discharged prematurely --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  He will be back.

         22                 MS. MAGNETTI:  That's it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And it costs

         24  more.

         25                 MS. MAGNETTI:  There you go.

                                                            154

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  I just wanted to

          3  sort of elaborate on a little bit of this, which is

          4  that one of the ways we try to plan for patients to

          5  leave the institution is to be able to be familiar

          6  with the resources available to them in their

          7  community.  I can't tell you how difficult it is

          8  going to be for Pilgrim State to figure out the

          9  resources for people to return to the Bronx.  There

         10  is no way that that is going to result in anything

         11  but chaos and people falling through the bottom of

         12  the net.

         13                 We have youngsters referred to us at

         14  Bronx Childrens, who have failed in multiple

         15  hospitalizations but a lot of that is because many

         16  of them have been diverted to other facilities in

         17  Westchester County, et cetera, et cetera, for acute

         18  hospitalizations through their HMOs or their managed

         19  Medicaid.  Those facilities have no ability to plan

         20  for them in the Bronx.  It just won't work, let

         21  alone trying to get families to be part of the

         22  process on a regular basis.  Or do the things that

         23  we do to return them to families, home visits, home

         24  passes, abilities to go see sick relatives in

         25  hospitals.  These are things that we do routinely
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          2  because we have access to the families and to the

          3  networks.  If they don't have access to these, these

          4  children are going to be isolated more and more, and

          5  families will eventually start to give up.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  My last question

          7  is the following, and I want each and every one of

          8  you to answer this question.  I am planning to have

          9  some speakouts.  One of them, I was planning to have

         10  it in the Bronx close by the psychiatric institution

         11  that we talking about in order to attract the

         12  population who's affected by this including, if it's

         13  possible, to attract the population who receive the

         14  services, because I think they should be given the

         15  opportunity to speak on this issue.  I mean, they

         16  are going to be the one who are going to be affected

         17  the most.

         18                 I want to know what your position is

         19  in regard to that, if you think it's useful to have

         20  a speakout there.  Because if the State think that

         21  the voices of the people are going to be silent

         22  because they are not going to notify, because they

         23  are not going to allow hearings to occur, because

         24  they going to cover up this and not give proper

         25  notification, well, I have news for them.  As the
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          2  Chair of this committee I'm planning to let it know.

          3                 (Applause)

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Nobody will stop

          5  me because I feel it's the mandate that I have from

          6  the speaker of the City Council, who has taken the

          7  position, a very strong position, that reinvestment

          8  of the dollars that we put as the taxpayer to the

          9  State of New York has to come back to us in services

         10  form.

         11                 MS. MAGNETTI:  Right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  In regard of

         13  psychiatric services, apparently the Governor think

         14  that he is not going to reimburse what we pay in the

         15  coffers of the State with our taxes.  I'm following

         16  my leader, Speaker Gifford Miller, on this policy

         17  and I'm taking this hearing into the Bronx, in the

         18  upper Manhattan.  I want to know what is your

         19  reaction to that, and if you think that people will

         20  come if I invite them to come.

         21                 MR. PORRO:  Madam Chair, you have to

         22  invite consumers and families that are in programs.

         23  If you invite the providers, the providers are the

         24  ones that are gonna come out.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But I didn't say
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          2  that.

          3                 MR. PORRO:  Okay.  But --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I don't know if

          5  you were listening to what I was saying.

          6                 MR. PORRO:  No, I --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I didn't mention

          8  them at all.

          9                 MR. PORRO:  Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I mentioned the

         11  people who are in the hospital, hospitalized and the

         12  parents and family members of those people and

         13  consumers.  That's who I mentioned.  I didn't

         14  mention nobody else.

         15                 MR. PORRO:  Okay. I meant to say

         16  consumers of mental health, the ones in the

         17  hospitals and day treatment programs.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I said consumers,

         19  people who are hospitalized right now as we speak

         20  and the family members and parents.  I want to hear

         21  from them.  I'm not saying that the other ones are

         22  not important, but in this particular case, when

         23  this hospital is close, the ones who are going to

         24  have the crunch in the chest is those three groups

         25  that I mentioned.
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          2                 MR. PORRO:  I just wanted to mention

          3  Peter Rivera, the Assemblyman, just became the co-

          4  Chair of Albany, right, for that committee, the

          5  Mental Health Committee?  And I believe that's his

          6  district as well.  So, he has not reached out or

          7  gotten back to me.

          8                 MS. MAGNETTI:  He has.  He has

          9  reached out.

         10                 MR. PORRO:  Let me finish.  He has

         11  not reached out to me.  I have called.  I left

         12  messages and, apparently, as a consumer I feel that

         13  I'm being ignored by the people that I'm trying to

         14  contact.  So that's what I wanted --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay, let me

         16  clarify something for the purpose of Assemblyman

         17  Peter Rivera.

         18                 I must tell you that Peter Rivera and

         19  I are in constant communication.  As a matter of

         20  fact, we saw each other last week and we were

         21  talking about the hearing that we have here today

         22   'cause he and I are approaching this issue

         23  together. It's not just me.  I want you to know

         24  that.

         25                 (Applause)
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And I want you to

          3  know that I was in the Bronx like a month ago,

          4  correct, Anne? More or less.  Like a month or a

          5  month and a half where I was discussing a series of

          6  issues that are on the agenda today in here.  I'm

          7  coordinating my work with all of those people from

          8  the Assembly and the Senate in regard of mental

          9  health and mental retardation.

         10                 MS. MAGNETTI:  Great.  Great.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I just want you

         12  to know. Now, in regard of your personal call,

         13  perhaps the Assemblyman has not been able to call

         14  you because he's in Albany.  I would suggest for you

         15  to talk to the staff in there about the issues that

         16  you want to address for yourself and perhaps you

         17  will have a better opportunity.

         18                 Now, can you please answer me the

         19  question.

         20                 MS. MAGNETTI:  I applaud you and

         21  thank you for the invitation to do that.  All I'm

         22  asking is that you give us sufficient time that we

         23  can send out letters to the families, because we

         24  sent letters for this meeting and no one got it

         25  until Saturday because I only heard about it a week
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          2  ago.  We send the mailings out.  We need time

          3  because today, again, like our breakfast on March

          4  6th, the Legislative Breakfast, people showed up.

          5  We have people here that I did not expect to come

          6  today on one day's notice.  Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The reason why

          8  this was put together so fast is because I need this

          9  resolution to be passed to put pressure on the State

         10  before they make the final decision on the budget.

         11  That's it.

         12                 MS. MAGNETTI:  Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I need them to

         14  understand that in here we are looking at what's

         15  going on.  I will explain to you in a minute why I'm

         16  doing this.

         17                 MS. MAGNETTI:  Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes.

         19                 MAGNETTI:  Go ahead.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Do you think it

         21  would be useful?

         22                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  I always think

         23  those are useful.  Yes, I do.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  You think the

         25  people will come?
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          2                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  Yes, I do, with

          3  sufficient notice.

          4                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  Yes, absolutely.

          5                 MS. LASK:  I feel that the families

          6  should have sufficient notice an that they will

          7  come.  The patient's themselves, we'd have to depend

          8  on the outpatient population because the inpatients

          9  won't be able to come.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But everything

         11  depend where we hold this hearing, correct?

         12                 MS. LASK:  Yes.  I wish you could

         13  hold it at Bronx Psychiatric Center.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Let's see what we

         15  can do.

         16                 (Applause)

         17                 MS. LASK:  I've got to be honest.  I

         18  think family members will come possibly.  One of the

         19  biggest problems with consumer survivors of the

         20  system is the stigma and a lot of people really just

         21  do not like to come and identify themselves as

         22  consumers.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I understand

         24  that.

         25                 MS. LASK:  So, it becomes a little
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          2  problematic in that regard, but I think it's a good

          3  idea because, even if it's just the family -- it

          4  should be everyone, but whoever comes it's good to

          5  have a voice in support of the hospitals.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I understand it

          7  was a given moment in time in which women cannot say

          8  that they were women.

          9                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  And I must add

         10   --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  It was not good

         12  to be a woman.

         13                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  I must add to

         14  that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  You could not

         16  vote in this country.  To be a woman.

         17                 DR. GERBINO- ROSEN:  Women rock the

         18  cradle and move the world.  I believe that I do have

         19  to agree with you that Assemblyman Rivera has been

         20  very, very involved.  I had a meeting with him a

         21  couple of weeks ago and he's planning a hearing as

         22  well in May.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes, I'm aware of

         24  that, also, by the way.

         25                 The reason why I want to do this is
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          2  because I believe that this proposal of the

          3  Governor, perhaps, perhaps was not intended to

          4  accomplish that now, but accomplish that from -- a

          5  year from now.  And I believe that we need to

          6  prepare because now or year from now it doesn't

          7  matter.  I think that the Governor is in violation

          8  of many laws, many policies and this Chair of this

          9  committee's ready also to go to court on protecting

         10  the rights of the citizens of New York City --

         11                 (Applause)

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  -- For that place

         13  not to be closed down.  And that I'm making clear,

         14  and I hope that the representatives of the Governor

         15  are listening to me.

         16                 Thank you very much for your

         17  presentations. I appreciate you coming here today,

         18  particularly with this weather.  I have four more

         19  people to testify.  The names are?

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Raquel Ramos,

         21  James Hoffman, Deborah Lowman and Sarah Clarke.

         22  Please come forward.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  By the way, the

         24  purpose of this speakout is not just Bronx

         25  Psychiatric Unit, it's also the research -- the

                                                            164

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  psychiatric research -- no. Institute?  No.  New

          3  York State Psychiatric Institute.  It's for both

          4  that I am concerned about it.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Please raise

          6  your right hand.  Do you swear that the testimony

          7  you're about to provide before this committee is the

          8  whole truth and you will answer Council member

          9  questions truthfully?

         10                 MS. RAMOS:  I do.

         11                 MR. HOFFMAN:  I do.

         12                 MS. LOWMAN:  I do.

         13                 MS. CLARKE:  I do.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  We'll start on

         15  my right, your left, with Ms. Ramos.  Please state

         16  your name and organization or relationship for the

         17  record.

         18                 MS. RAMOS:  My name is Raquel Ramos

         19  and I'm a social worker at one of the facilities,

         20  but it's not the Bronx State, but it's the New York

         21  State Psychiatric Institute, which is scheduled to

         22  downsize by the summer of this year, actually.

         23  We've gotten a date of June 25th when about 60 lines

         24  will be terminated.

         25                 Good afternoon, members of the
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          2  Council, ladies and gentlemen.  As I said before, my

          3  name is Raquel Ramos.

          4                 I can come up her to talk to you

          5  about

          6  how I'm losing my job and the impact on my family,

          7  but first I think I'd rather talk to you about the

          8  people that I have -- that I come in contact with

          9  daily in my professional life.

         10                 I'm a social worker and I have been

         11  working at the New York State Psychiatric Institute

         12  for the past four years.  My duties are divided

         13  between the Schizophrenia Research Unit and the

         14  Bipolar Research Clinic.  The SRU, the Schizophrenia

         15  Research Unit, is an inpatient facility dedicated to

         16  conducting research in order to learn more about the

         17  causes of this illness very often, which is

         18  devastating, and also to provide clinical treatment.

         19                 The Bipolar Research Clinic is an

         20  outpatient clinic currently looking at the

         21  relationship between women hormonal cycles and mood.

         22    It's also studying alternative treatment methods

         23  for also this devastating and often life threatening

         24  illness.  Research is not all we do, also.  We also

         25  see patients weekly for clinical care.
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          2                 In addition to individual and group

          3  therapy, a major component of my work is to help

          4  families cope and understand the devastating mental

          5  illnesses that their loved ones are living with.

          6  People with schizophrenia and bipolar disorders have

          7  so many lost dreams, hopes and life goals. And

          8  helping them to reframe their lives is a key element

          9  in their recovery.

         10                 Without the basic support provided by

         11  these two centers, the lives of many would be

         12  seriously adversely affected.  Can anybody tell me

         13  what will happen to these patients?

         14                 On a personal level, I am the sole

         15  income provider for my family at this point.  My

         16  husband has been unemployed since January of this

         17  year and we have a two year old son, who has asthma.

         18    Can anybody tell me how could I continue to afford

         19  my health insurance for me and my family?

         20  Thank you.

         21                 (Applause)

         22                 MS. LOWMAN:  Good afternoon.  My name

         23  is Deborah Lowman and I'm a parent as well as a

         24  parent advocate at Bronx Children's Psychiatric

         25  Center.
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          2                 I have a daughter who is

          3  bipolar/schizo affective.  I first became aware of

          4  Bronx Children's when my daughter was seven years

          5  old.  She had been hearing voices and she said

          6  squirrels were telling her to kill herself.  At the

          7  time it wasn't funny, but as I think on it now, I

          8  have to laugh about it.  I was very concerned about

          9  my daughter's wellbeing.  The environment at the

         10  hospital was very comforting.  The staff and the

         11  doctors really care about the children that are in

         12  their charge.  My child really thrived. The

         13  treatment she received and the schooling that she

         14  got helped her to face the realities of being

         15  emotionally disturbed.  It took many different

         16  trials of medications until the right one was found

         17  for her.  She was about 14 or 15 and at that time

         18  the medication that she was put on was clozapine.

         19  That was mostly an adult medication, so they had to

         20  get a waiver for her to take it.  This medicine

         21  helped to stabilize her to the point that she could

         22  come home from the hospital  My daughter now attends

         23  a private special needs school in Mt. Kisko, New

         24  York.  She travels every day on a school bus.

         25  She'll be graduating in June of this year, receiving
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          2  a local high school diploma, not an IEP diploma. I

          3  didn't write what I'm getting ready to say in here.

          4  My daughter wants to teach.  She loves young

          5  children.  And she also wants to go into the Peace

          6  Corps and college, so I'm very happy for her.

          7                 I thank God for Bronx Children's

          8  because if the services and understanding that we

          9  received there had not helped, I literally would

         10  have lost my mind.

         11                 I urge this committee to condemn the

         12  Governor's budget proposal to close the Bronx

         13  Children's Psychiatric Center, the Bronx Psychiatric

         14  Center and the three other adult psychiatric centers

         15  that serve children and adults in New York City and

         16  New York State.  Thank you.

         17                 (Applause)

         18                 MR. HOFFMAN:  My throat is sore right

         19  now, but if I can talk low enough maybe I can get it

         20  all through. My name is James Hoffman.  I was born

         21  here in New York City about a hundred years ago.

         22  That's not true, it's 64 years ago.

         23                 When I was born I was -- I'm going to

         24  go through a very quick story here.  At one point it

         25  was very traumatic, now it's just a story.  I was
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          2  immediately, if not sooner, placed in foster homes,

          3  seven different foster homes for the first seven

          4  years of my life.  When I didn't adjust at foster

          5  homes, what happened was that I ended up in a major

          6  institution called Hebrew National Orphans Home up

          7  in the Bronx.  I spent between the age of 7 and 13

          8  there.  When I didn't adjust there they sent me to

          9  Bellevue Hospital to have me diagnosed, to find out

         10  what my problem was.  What they diagnosed me with

         11  was I was retarded.  I was placed in an institution

         12  up in the Bronx called Edenwald School for Boys

         13  (phonetic) for people who were retarded, emotionally

         14  disturbed and a whole lot of other things.  I got to

         15  live the rest of my -- up until the age of 18, 18

         16  1/2 years of age in that institution.  Leaving

         17  Edenwald, I was put out into the world with no

         18  social skills, wasn't able to read, write, do

         19  anything educationally, and told to go out into the

         20  world and make it on my own.

         21                 Well, I had many different kinds of

         22  jobs which was delivering milk at night, picking up

         23  crates from fruit dealer markets, working as a

         24  plumber for a number of years.  Could never read,

         25  write or do anything.              I began to teach
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          2  myself to read, to write.  Math is still a problem

          3  for me today and so is writing.

          4                 Skipping through some of this story,

          5  I met a wonderful woman who was a friend of the

          6  Commissioner of HRA back in the days of the Anti-

          7  Poverty Program.  She felt that I would be a great

          8  help working with people who were underskilled and

          9  underemployed with the Anti- Poverty Program, so I

         10  went to work with the Neighborhood Youth Corps.  I

         11  went through Neighborhood Youth Corps and going

         12  there and not being able to read or write or do

         13  anything, but other than the fact of doing some very

         14  good counseling, helping people get their stuff

         15  together when my stuff was still hanging out

         16  somewhere.

         17                 Then I moved on to other jobs as well

         18  in working with people with no education.  I learned

         19  how to lie a lot, which is to forge a resume so that

         20  I can get better jobs and even became a Director of

         21  a couple of drug abuse programs up in East

         22  Providence, Rhode Island, and helped run a program

         23  up in Vermont for senior citizens.

         24                                I've been sitting here

         25  now listening to people testify about different

                                                            171

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  aspects of different programs.  I really don't have

          3  much of an idea what's going on with the Bronx

          4  mental health thing -- Mental Health Center, other

          5  than the fact that Pataki plans on closing it and

          6  sending people off to other places.  I would think

          7  that's a damn shame, but, more important, that I

          8  find more important here is the programs that are

          9  really, really necessary are the beginning school

         10  programs for kids who will or do have disabilities.

         11  They need to learn to be able to be sociable in

         12  schools.  When I say schools, I'm talking about

         13  regular P.S. Schools.  No matter if they have

         14  dyslexia, whatever the process is, they should not

         15  be removed from their families.  They should stay

         16  with their families.  They shouldn't be -- they

         17  could be diagnosed by clinics about what the

         18  problems are, but they should remain in public

         19  schools with support in public schools.

         20                 I'll give you an idea of a program

         21  that -- when I moved to Santa Barbara, California,

         22  there was a program there for people who were

         23  retarded, emotionally disturbed and a whole lot of

         24  other things.  They were being housed about a half a

         25  mile away from the state prison in Santa Barbara, or
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          2  the county prison anyway.  Somewhere along the line

          3  somebody got an idea that it was time to take these

          4  people away from this environment of a prison and

          5  start to put them out into the community.  Now, they

          6  had a very good Housing Authority out there which

          7  began to go to Washington and get money to build

          8  these two like buildings up against each other and

          9  put like two people in each one of these apartments

         10  and have roving counselors come around about once a

         11  week to find out how things are going and so on and

         12  so forth.  The community fought that like hell

         13  because they didn't want retarded, emotionally

         14  disturbed, a whole lot of other people who were

         15  diagnosed with disabilities and stuff like that

         16  living in their communities.  They felt the price

         17  was gonna bring -- the prices of their home would be

         18  brought down.  Well, that went through and they

         19  finally did build these frame houses, you might say.

         20                 The next step was to get these folks

         21  out of this workshop situation where they went to

         22  every day for like seven hours a day and they put

         23  pens together and they put little kits together and

         24  all that kinds of stuff.  They started to talk about

         25  placing them on jobs where they would fit into.  It
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          2  may mean that they'd be mopping floors or working in

          3  the zoo or doing a whole lot of other things in the

          4  community, but getting paid for what they were

          5  doing. This was fought for a while.

          6                 But the reality of the situation,

          7  Santa Barbara today has a very, very good community

          8  supportive of its people with disabilities and stuff

          9  like that, who do go to work every day, get paid for

         10  four hours a day, live on SSI, but are able to keep

         11  the money that they get without having to forfeit --

         12  the fact that if they work more than six months

         13  they've got to give up their SSI.

         14                 What I see a need for, for people

         15  with disabilities, is to be able to go to work

         16   'cause I think work is the most incentive thing to

         17  keep people on track, where their lives are going.

         18  And to work for four hours a day and to be able to

         19  say to themselves well, we can keep this money if

         20  we're living on Social Security SSI or SSD or

         21  whatever it is, and be able to start feeling some

         22  pride and not have to worry about because they have,

         23  you know, if you work more than so many months per

         24  year, that you get your Social Security cut back or

         25  cut off completely or your medical benefits.  This
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          2  is an area that I feel very strongly that needs to

          3  be worked on.  People who have disabilities should

          4  be able to work and be able to keep the money that

          5  they make, whatever their job is, as long as they

          6  can be able to stay competitive in the market with

          7  the average person and be able to have a way of

          8  looking at themselves in the mirror when they get up

          9  to go to work in the morning with some sort of

         10  pride.  That's an area that needs to be issued.

         11                 The other issue is also keeping young

         12  kids in school and keeping them there so -- because,

         13  I don't know what it costs to keep a person in a

         14  state mental hospital today per day, whatever it is,

         15  it's a hell of a lot more than finding housing,

         16  affordable housing for people with disabilities or

         17  whatever it is, mental disabilities. Whatever the

         18  situation is.  It's time, and it's cheaper.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         20                 MR. HOFFMAN:  It really is, and I

         21  support your program very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 MR. HOFFMAN:  And I would like you to

         25  look into some of the stuff I have just brought up.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  Council

          3  Member?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.  My

          5  question is to Raquel Ramos.  Miss Ramos, I read

          6  your testimony, and from reading your testimony you

          7  say your duties are divided between the SRU and the

          8  BDRC units, the impact.  My understanding is that

          9  those units at the Psychiatric Institute serves the

         10  majority -- all of northern Manhattan, for mental

         11  health services and for research, and that the

         12  majority of the people that live in northern

         13  Manhattan, which I'm one of them, the average family

         14  income is under $30,000 a year.

         15                 Where would those individuals if, in

         16  fact, the proposed consolidation of the Psychiatric

         17  Institute and NKI, Nathan Kline Institute -- where

         18  would those individuals go for the type of research

         19  and/or type of evaluations and services if, in fact,

         20  they were lost and people like you were lost in the

         21  process, as far as the consolidation?  Do you have

         22  any idea?

         23                 MS. RAMOS:  That's a very good

         24  question and I don't think anybody has the answer

         25  for now.

                                                            176

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2                 I said that that's a very good

          3  question and I wish somebody had the answer for me.

          4  I don't think anybody has it for now.

          5                 Yes, we service, and the Psychiatric

          6  Institute is a free hospitalization.  In the

          7  inpatient unit patients stay there at least three

          8  months, which in the age of HMOs, nobody have ever

          9  heard of anything like that, staying at least three

         10  months in a hospital, getting top quality clinical

         11  care and also being able to participate in research

         12  so that we could learn a little bit more about the

         13  process of these devastating illness.

         14                 As some parents spoke here today,

         15  having children with schizophrenia, we definitely

         16  know how devastating it is.  The same thing with

         17  bipolar disorder because we treat it, and I happen

         18  to work in both components of that.  Nobody really

         19  knows.

         20                 The only treatment facility in the

         21  area is the Columbia- Presbyterian Hospital that, as

         22  everybody know, it's a private hospital, or one of

         23  the volunteer hospitals, and they will not take

         24  anybody who does not have insurance. One of the

         25  things that we do is that a lot of people who have
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          2  no insurance get referred to us because we provide

          3  free treatment to these patients.

          4                 I'm actually the only social worker

          5  at the Schizophrenia Research Unit and the Bipolar

          6  Clinic.  So, I'm the only social worker.  I'm

          7  bilingual, bicultural.  At this point I'm scheduled

          8  be let go as of June 25th.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Let me ask

         10  about the population that you see, the majority of

         11  the population that you see in both those units, and

         12  then also I'm sure you know what your colleagues at

         13  Psychiatric Institute, the type of individuals that

         14  they see.  I mean, you have how many clinics besides

         15  the research you're doing?  You have the Audubon

         16  Clinic.

         17                 MS. RAMOS:  And the Inwood Clinic

         18  (phonetic). Those are the two outpatient clinics.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  And

         20  the majority of those individuals, who are they?

         21  Who do they look like?  What language do they speak?

         22                 MS. RAMOS:  Just like me.  Just like

         23  many people here.  They speak Spanish.  They're

         24  basically -- and most of them are from the Dominican

         25  Republic, primarily new immigrants who are not
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          2  really familiar with the language. But actually,

          3  many, many of them have become naturalized Americans

          4  and they vote.  I want people to remember that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  The reason

          6  why I asked that is because it seems ironic that

          7  last year we had our Governor, my Governor, too,

          8  Governor Pataki, running around "Amigos, Pataki,"

          9  and "Friends of Pataki," and all in Spanish all over

         10  the place.

         11                 MS. RAMOS:  (Speaking Spanish)  He

         12  said last year with the World Cup, he was on the

         13  news, "It's not just soccer, it's the World Cup."

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I see.

         15  Well, it seems as though we have a road show here in

         16  order to curry favor to people at the moment.  It

         17  seems as though the seriousness of this particular

         18  matter in dealing with constituents and

         19  communicating, eyeball to eyeball, and communicating

         20  the truth, it's not happening.  I just wanted to

         21  know because, obviously, when you have a Governor,

         22  in my opinion, that runs around smiling at people

         23  and saying, "I'm your friend," and then turn around

         24  and cut services to your community, that clearly

         25  indicates that he's not a friend.            I'm
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          2  just curious as to, are the people that are served

          3  by Psychiatric Institute aware what's going to

          4  happen to them?

          5                 MS. RAMOS:  I don't think so.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  So,

          7  then going back to the Chair's position of holding

          8  sort of like hearings in the community or town hall

          9  meetings to bring this to the attention as to the

         10  cuts and cutbacks that they're going to have, that's

         11  going to have on the community, do you think that's

         12  clearly appropriate?

         13                 MS. RAMOS:  I will definitely agree

         14  with that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  My last

         16  question. At this point in time do you have a date

         17  that you're scheduled to be laid off as of yet?

         18                 MS. RAMOS:  Yes, June 25th.  Well,

         19  now that there is the court case that is going

         20  tomorrow, there is supposedly no list, but the list

         21  is there and June 25th is the target date.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That you're

         23  scheduled to be laid off?

         24                 MS. RAMOS:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And you

                                                            180

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  indicate in your testimony that you're married, that

          3  you have, I think, one or two children.

          4                 MS. RAMOS:  One child.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And that

          6  your husband has been unemployed since January.

          7                 MS. RAMOS:  That's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  If you're

          9  laid off from your job, how is your family going to

         10  survive?

         11                 MS. RAMOS:  That's a very good

         12  question.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  See, I raise

         14  this question to you, and you've answered it,

         15   "That's a good question," because I said to the

         16  Chancellor, Chancellor Klein, the other day when

         17  there was an Education Committee hearing, that I

         18  look at it not only from a narrow point of view, I

         19  look at it from a whole list of point of views.

         20

         21  By keeping you employed, you are providing the

         22  services that are necessary for our community.  By

         23  laying you off, those services will not be provided

         24  for our community and, if you're unemployed and your

         25  husband is unemployed and, if you don't have the
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          2  income to survive, then you may be evicted, you may

          3  go on Welfare and your child -- the services that

          4  your child needs may go unfilled.

          5                 In the long run, we, meaning society,

          6  will be paying more to take care of you when you're

          7  unemployed than to keep you employed and helping

          8  people in our community. So, to me, you're --

          9  looking at it from the perspective of a whole list

         10  of points of view is the best way to look at it and

         11  not from, "Oh, we're just going to make sure that X

         12  amount of dollars are cut from the budget."  Do you

         13  see like I see or am I seeing cloudy?

         14                 MS. RAMOS:  I definitely see how you

         15  see it, and I agree with you.  I will definitely, my

         16  family will definitely will become a burden to

         17  society if I, too, get unemployed.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I want to

         21  understand something that I am a little bit confuse.

         22    The Nathan S. Kline Institute is the proposal of

         23  the Governor to merger that institute with New York

         24  Psychiatric Institute, correct?

         25                 MS. RAMOS:  That's correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And what the

          3  merger composed of?

          4                 MS. RAMOS:  Suppose to close down the

          5  facilities of Nathan Kline and then they are gonna

          6  bring people from Nathan Kline down to the New York

          7  State Psychiatric Institute.  That nobody really

          8  knows -- actually, it's pretty much very foggy.

          9  Nobody really knows exactly what it is.  It's a lot

         10  of speculation as of what is gonna happen with the

         11  lines that are gonna be lost in our facilities.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Do you know,

         13  where is the location of the Nathan S. Kline

         14  Institute?

         15                 MS. RAMOS:  It's in Rockland (sic).

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  In Brooklyn.

         17                 MS. RAMOS:  Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then people who

         19  are in Brooklyn are going to be transported to the

         20  Psychiatric Institute.

         21                 MS. RAMOS:  That's correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  People who are in

         23  the Bronx are going to be transporter to Pilgrim

         24  State.  People who are in Middletown are going to be

         25  transporter who knows where?  This is the plan of
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          2  the Governor.

          3                 MS. RAMOS:  Um- hum.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Did I conclude

          5  that correctly?

          6                 MS. RAMOS:  That's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  That we don't

          8  know what this is about, and this speak about a

          9  total disorganization of a plan that doesn't make

         10  sense at the end of the day.

         11                 MS. RAMOS:  That's correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Do you know how

         13  many people are going to be transported from Nathan

         14  S. Kline Institute to you?

         15                 MS. RAMOS:  We've been told that we

         16  have to make room for about 60 people coming from

         17  Nathan Kline but, again, nobody has really been

         18  clear about what is gonna happen.  It's a lot of,

         19  just a lot of things through the grapevine.  Nothing

         20  official has really come out.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The -- what is

         22  the word

         23   -- you know, that happen when you speak Spanish and

         24  you translate to English -- all the time.  The

         25  capacity that the Institute have, do you know which
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          2  one is?  Internal beds?

          3                 MS. RAMOS:  There are three inpatient

          4  facilities in the hospital, two have 24 beds, the

          5  other have 12 beds.  Of this about 36 are research,

          6  the other 24 are just clinical care.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  All right.  I

          8  learn at least arithmetic, and that doesn't add up

          9  to 65 people.

         10                 MS. RAMOS:  But, remember --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Where those 65

         12  people are coming and where the people who are there

         13  are going to be?

         14                 MS. RAMOS:  Um- hum.  There are also,

         15  I don't even know, a numerous number of outpatient

         16  clinics, numerous outpatient clinics, also, that are

         17  being affected by the cuts.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  By the cuts.

         19                 MS. RAMOS:  Um- hum.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But I'm just

         21  trying to figure out how smart is the Commissioner

         22  of Mental Health

         23  or the Secretary -- the Commissioner, the Secretary

         24   -- Commissioner of Mental Health at the level of

         25  the State is when come down to mathematics.  Around
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          2  60- something people are coming from the State to

          3  the Institute, but we don't have even have 60 beds.

          4                 MS. RAMOS:  That's correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Oh, this is

          6  fascinating. This is just too much.  The place that

          7  you work is utilized by how many people?

          8                 MS. RAMOS:  At the Schizophrenia

          9  Research Unit, which is the smallest unit, that has

         10  12 beds.  And, again, these are patients that stay

         11  in the unit for at least three months.  Sometimes it

         12  goes to seven, eight, nine months, depending on

         13  disposition very often.  Where are these patients

         14  gonna go when they have no families to go to, when

         15  they have no -- the family members are not able to

         16  take them in because they're very chronic patients

         17  and, for whatever reason, it's not indicated that

         18  they go back home? We have to have them wait there

         19  until we find appropriate housing for them.  You

         20  know, it's a small facility, but the amount of work

         21  that is done, it's tremendous.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Do you have a

         23  waiting list for those 12 beds?

         24                 MS. RAMOS:  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  How big is it,
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          2  the waiting list?

          3                 MS. RAMOS:  I'm not involved in the

          4  Screening Committee, but there is usually a few

          5  people waiting to come in at any given time, plus we

          6  get people from the emergency rooms and from other

          7  facilities, also, coming.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The clinics that

          9  provide mental health services, those clinics are

         10  for the community?

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  Yes.

         12                 MS. RAMOS:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  How many are

         14  they?

         15                 MS. RAMOS:  I don't know, probably

         16  hundreds or maybe close to a hundred.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  That are

         18  connected to the Psychiatric Institute.

         19                 MS. RAMOS:  That are part of the

         20  Psychiatric Institute.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And these clinics

         22  are going to be affected by this?

         23                 MS. RAMOS:  Many of them, yes,

         24  including the Bipolar Research Clinic, which is

         25  probably gonna cut down to zero because the two
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          2  other people working in that clinic are slated to be

          3  laid off, including myself.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And the people

          5  who go to these clinics are usually from the

          6  neighborhood or they come from everywhere?

          7                 MS. RAMOS:  They come from all over

          8  the place, but a lot of them do come from the

          9  community.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  A lot.

         11                 MS. RAMOS:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Can you give me a

         13  rough number of how many people are served yearly in

         14  the entire facility on the clinics, or you don't

         15  know that information?

         16                 MS. RAMOS:  No, no.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  In the clinics

         18  that you are.

         19                 MS. RAMOS:  In the clinics that I

         20  work

         21  it's --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Roughly.  You

         23  don't need to be precise.

         24                 MS. RAMOS:  Yeah.  I wouldn't be able

         25  to provide a number.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  It's okay.

          3    I mean, this is not a test.

          4                 MS. RAMOS:  No, I know.  I wish I had

          5  the answer but, unfortunately, I don't.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Monthly, do you

          7  know how many people get served in the clinic?

          8  Monthly?

          9                 MS. RAMOS:  On a monthly basis,

         10  remember we see patients at least once a week, we

         11  service about probably 50 people every month.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Fifty monthly?

         13                 MS. RAMOS:  Um- hum.  But these are

         14  people that are -- there are small clinics.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No, I understand,

         16  but that's a lot.

         17                 MS. RAMOS:  And we see them every

         18  week for therapy, medication, management and for

         19  research participation, also.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The 50

         21  individuals monthly, that you see every weeks at

         22  least.

         23                 MS. RAMOS:  Every month.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And that's one

         25  unit. That is a very small one.
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          2                 MS. RAMOS:  Um- hum.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  I thank

          4  you very much.  I'm sorry that I submitted you to

          5  the third degree.

          6                 As I said before Council Member

          7  Jackson came in, I'm planning to have also a

          8  speakout there, in the community, because I think

          9  that I need to bring out the information to the

         10  people that they are closing the firehouses in our

         11  communities.

         12                 MS. RAMOS: I greatly appreciate it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Let me tell you

         14  why I call it the firehouses.  It's very interesting

         15  how our city mobilized when the firehouses for the

         16  firemens are going to be closed, and the newspapers

         17  go running and everybody's crazy about the

         18  firehouses being closed.

         19                 Meanwhile, when we talking about

         20  mental health services that get cut and closing our

         21  communities, which is a fire -- I have to say that

         22  that's the most horrendous fire that we can have in

         23  our communities, and these fires begin happening

         24  like wild fires in the forest -- nobody in the news

         25  come scare and announce about this.  If we lose our
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          2  mental health services, provision of services in our

          3  communities, what we literally having is fires.  We

          4  burning down our neighborhoods.  I don't know why

          5  people doesn't see it like I do, but I do not need

          6  people to see it like I do because I do what I have

          7  to do.

          8                 I thank you for your testimony.

          9                 Can I ask you a favor?  Can you

         10  introduce me to your daughter?  I would love to meet

         11  her.

         12                 MS. LOWMAN:  You know, I almost

         13  brought her today because the school was closed

         14  because of the snow, and I left her home.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I would love to

         16  meet her. It would be my honor to get to know your

         17  daughter.  It's an amazing pleasure for me to see

         18  you testify about the story of your daughter, that

         19  to meet her would be awesome.  If you can allow me

         20  to do that.  Thank you.

         21                 (Applause)

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Our last

         23  witness is John Shea.

         24                 (Applause)

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  But not least.
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          2                 Please raise your right hand.  Do you

          3  swear that the testimony you're about to provide

          4  before this committee is the whole truth and you

          5  will answer Council member questions truthfully?

          6                 MR. SHEA:  I do.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

          8  State your name and begin.

          9                 MR. SHEA:  My name is John Shea and,

         10  I have to admit, I feel somewhat repetitive after

         11  these passionate testimonies, but I'm very grateful

         12  that you'll allow me to read my statement.

         13                 Good afternoon.  I'm speaking today

         14  in support of Resolution 771.  My name is John Shea

         15  and I am a member of the Board of Visitors of Bronx

         16  Children's Psychiatric Center.  As a member of the

         17  Board of Visitors, I have the responsibility of

         18  ensuring that the quality of care for the children

         19  of this hospital is maintained to the highest

         20  possible standard.  If the proposed closure of this

         21  facility is allowed to occur, there is no question

         22  that there would be a significant negative impact on

         23  our patients, their families and the community of

         24  the Bronx.

         25                 The Governor's proposal to close this
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          2  hospital fails to provide reasonable alternatives to

          3  deliver even adequate care to our patients.  The

          4  facts are that Bronx Children's Psychiatric Center

          5  is a 78- bed inpatient facility that is at least 95%

          6  occupied every day.  The current plan to relocate

          7  these children to other facilities on Long Island or

          8  in Rockland County would be devastating. The support

          9  of the families and the communities of these

         10  patients is vital for their recovery, and displacing

         11  them from the Bronx would deny them this invaluable

         12  support. These children come from some of the

         13  poorest families in New York City, many of which

         14  rely on public transportation that would not be

         15  available to them to reach these locations.

         16                 Bronx Children's has four day

         17  treatment programs and numerous outpatient programs

         18  that serve on average 250 of the borough's children

         19  every day.  The Governor's proposal recognizes that

         20  more money is needed to expand these community-

         21  based programs, but it is disingenuous to imply that

         22  these could be funded at the expense of inpatient

         23  services.  These services are separate and distinct

         24  from one another and must be viewed as such.       The

         25  academic affiliations between Bronx Children's and
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          2  the Albert Einstein College of Medicine as well as

          3  internship and externship programs with Yeshiva

          4  University, Fordham University, Adelphi University

          5  and others are unique programs that are important to

          6  the development of mental health services throughout

          7  the State.

          8                 There are many more children in the

          9  community that could benefit from the services of

         10  this hospital, but lack of space and resources force

         11  them to be relocated outside of the borough.  The

         12  result is that Bronx Children's receives only our

         13  most severely disabled children, creating a

         14  disproportionately difficult population.  Releasing

         15  these children into the community and expecting that

         16  outpatient services are a viable means of treatment

         17  ignores the reality of their illnesses.

         18                 As an advocate for the patients of

         19  our hospital and for the people of the Bronx, I

         20  express my enthusiastic support for Council

         21  Resolution 771, condemning the Governor's proposal

         22  to close these facilities.  I thank the Council for

         23  their work on our behalf and on behalf of our

         24  children and urge you to continue the fight against

         25  this ill- conceived plan.  Thank you.
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          2                 (Applause)

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I thank you.  As

          4  a quality assurance person in the Psychiatric Center

          5  in the Bronx, what are your duties?

          6                 MR. SHEA:  My duties are to visit the

          7  hospital, talk to the children, talk to the staffs,

          8  talk to the families and make sure that the hospital

          9  is providing them the services that they think that

         10  they need.  I like to talk to the kids more than

         11  anything, to make sure that they're happy, that they

         12  look like they're getting good treatment, that

         13  physically they are --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Isn't it the

         15  responsibility of the person who occupies your

         16  position to, therefore, find out how will it affect

         17  these children, the closing of this facility?

         18                 MR. SHEA:  Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Did you receive

         20  notification of the closing of these facilities in a

         21  way that would allow you to explore what would be

         22  the consequences of this on these children?

         23                 MR. SHEA:  No, ma'am.  I was actually

         24  told by the staff and, to be honest, the staff

         25  didn't know until the day that they were told and
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          2  then they cascaded it down to me.  But this was all

          3  within the past couple of weeks.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then the position

          5  that you occupy, that is created by the State, for

          6  you to make sure that quality assurance care occur,

          7  the mandate that you have to fulfill this has been

          8  violated at the same time that you're told to go and

          9  do this work.  Because you are not even aware that

         10  it's a proposal to close this place.

         11                 MR. SHEA:  I do feel that way, yes.

         12  What makes it especially awkward is I was actually

         13  appointed by Governor Pataki to the position.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  This is

         15  unbelievable to me.  Then, do you agree that when a

         16  place is closed suddenly, that this have serious

         17  implications in the modality of treatment that a

         18  child suppose to receive in order to achieve a

         19  particular objective?  When you come and make a

         20  decision of totally trivialize the treatment that

         21  this person was receiving, just by moving them out,

         22  is a total disestablishment (phonetic).  Do you

         23  agree with that?

         24                 MR. SHEA:  There's no question about

         25  that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And that, in

          3  itself, is a combination of quality of care.

          4                 MR. SHEA:  Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Correct.  Thank

          6  you. That's very helpful.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I have one

          8  question. I apologize.  I had to escort the young

          9  lady out to get her coat.  You were appointed by

         10  Governor Pataki to the Board of Visitors?

         11                 MR. SHEA:  Yes, sir.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now, you are

         13  aware that the lawsuit that PEF and, I believe, the

         14  other unions filed in order to stop the closure

         15  because the one- year statute of limitations in

         16  accordance with the law as far as impact had not

         17  been properly implemented, is that correct? You're

         18  aware of that?

         19                 MR. SHEA:  I'm aware of that, yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  As someone

         21  that was appointed by the Governor in order to --

         22  the Board of Visitors, my understanding, is supposed

         23  to look after the best interests of the patients

         24  that are at the hospital, is that correct?

         25                 MR. SHEA:  That's correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Do you feel

          3  that the proposed closure of these two facilities

          4  are in the best interests of the clients that are

          5  served there, the patients that are served there?

          6  And especially after hearing testimony of the

          7  parents that gave testimony as to the transportation

          8  and the impact, programmatic impacts that the

          9  proposed closure is going to have, would you agree

         10  or disagree, based on everything that I've said and

         11  what you've heard, with the Governor's proposed

         12  actions?

         13                 MR. SHEA:  I not only think that it

         14  is not in their best interest, I think it

         15  controverts their interests. I think it will set any

         16  of these patients back in whatever treatment they

         17  are receiving.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  With that, we

         22  conclude this hearing today.  I am going to take --

         23  I would like to notify you that this resolution will

         24  be listened to --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Voted on.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: -- Next Wednesday?

          3  Okay.

          4                 This resolution will be polled on the

          5  general meeting on April 30th.  My preference would

          6  have been that this be voted before that but,

          7  apparently, my wishes are not something that people

          8  want to fulfill.

          9                 Therefore, it will be on the April 30

         10  meeting of the City Council where this resolution

         11  will be confirmed by the committee or not.  Just for

         12  you to know if you would like to bring people here

         13  to support that resolution on the total floor.

         14  Immobilize parents and people who are affected by

         15  this.  That's number one.

         16                 Number two, we are going to try to

         17  see if we can continue to get publicity to this

         18  through press conference and things like that.

         19                 Number four, you're going to hear

         20  from me about having speakouts in the Bronx and in

         21  the Institute in the -- part of Washington Heights.

         22                 And the last, but not less important,

         23  this issue's just begin in this committee.

         24                 I thank you for coming here today on

         25  a day like this but, remember, when it snow or water
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          2  come down, it's blessing from God to all of us.

          3  Thank you very much.  This hearing is adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 5:30 p.m.)
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